
 
 
 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Regular Board Meeting

AGENDA
 

Monday, April 26, 2021, 7:30 p.m.
Broadcasted via YouTube

https://bit.ly/3czx8bA

Pages

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING

This meeting is being audio and video recorded. The video can be viewed on
the District website.

A.1. Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories

The Greater Victoria School District wishes to recognize and
acknowledge the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose traditional
territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work.

A.2. Approval of the Agenda

Recommended Motion:
That the April 26, 2021 agenda be approved.

A.3. Approval of the Minutes

a. Approval of the March 29, 2021 Regular Board Minutes 7

Recommended Motion:
That the March 29, 2021 Regular Board Minutes be approved.

b. Approval of the April 13, 2021 Special Board Minutes 27

Recommended Motion:
That the April 13, 2021 Special Board Minutes be approved.

A.4. Business Arising from the Minutes

A.5. Student Achievement



a. Macaulay Elementary School - Josee Paris, Principal

A.6. District Presentations

A.7. Community Presentations

(5 minutes per presentation)

a. GVTA Mentorship Program Committee Presentation

b. Dr. Robert Oppenheimer, SD61 Parent, Proposed Budget Cuts

c. Paula Marchese, SD61 Parent, Proposed Budget Cuts

d. Shari Worsfold, Reading Recovery

e. William Reid, SD61 Student, District Music Program/Proposed
Budget

f. Robin Tosczak, GVTA, Reading Recovery

B. CORRESPONDENCE

B.1. March 31, 2021, BCSTA to Minister of Education, School Life Cycle
Funding

33

B.2. April 1, 2021, SD33 to Minister of Education and Minister of Public
Safety, Educational Services in Correctional Facilities

34

B.3. Budget Correspondence re Proposed 2021-2022 Budget 36

C. TRUSTEE REPORTS

C.1. Chair's Report

a. Chair's Report 634

b. Annual Workplan: May 636

C.2. Trustees' Reports 

(2 minutes per verbal presentation)

a. Trustee Paynter 637

D. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

Page 2 of 698



D.1. Education Policy and Directions Committee

a. Draft minutes from the April 6, 2021 meeting - Information only 639

D.2. Operations Policy and Planning Committee

a. Draft minutes from the April 12, 2021 meeting - Information only 644

b. Recommended motions from the April 12, 2021 meeting

a. Draft Child Care Policy 1330 651

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) disseminate the draft Child Care
Policy 1330 out for feedback. 

b. George Jay Naming Committee - Draft Terms of
Reference

655

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) approve the George Jay Naming
Committee Terms of Reference, as presented. 

D.3. Revised Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board 657

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
approve revised Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board.

Recommended Motion:
That revised Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board be:

Read a second time the 26th day of April, 2021;

Read a third time, passed and adopted the 26th day of April, 2021. 

 

E. DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS

E.1. Superintendent's Report

Page 3 of 698



a. Monthly Report 672

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) receive the Superintendent's report as presented.

b.  2021-22 School Calendar 

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the following 2021/2022 school calendar
dates:

2021/2022 School Calendar*     

School Opening                                                     September 7,
2021

First non-instructional day                                      September
27, 2021

Thanksgiving                                                         October 11,
2021

Second non-instructional day                                October 22,
2021 (Province wide)

Remembrance Day                                                November 11,
2021

Third non-instructional day                                     November 12,
2021

Schools close for Winter vacation                          December 17,
2021

Schools re-open after Winter vacation                   January 4,
2022

Fourth non-instructional day                                   February 18,
2022

Family Day                                                             February 21,
2022

Schools close for Spring vacation                          March 18,
2022

Schools re-open after Spring vacation                   April 4, 2022

Page 4 of 698



Good Friday                                                           April 15, 2022

Easter Monday                                                       April 18, 2022

Fifth non-instructional day                                      May 20, 2022

Victoria Day                                                            May 23, 2022

Administrative Day and School Closing                 June 24, 2022

*Sixth non-instructional day to be chosen by each school

c. Communications Update 673

d. Trustee Questions 692

E.2. Secretary-Treasurer's Report

a. Monthly Report 693

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) receive the Secretary- Treasurer's report as presented.

b. Victoria High School Track

c. Sundance/Bank Street: Update

d. 2021-2022 Budget Update

F. QUESTION PERIOD 

(15 minutes total)

G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS

G.1. Record of In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - March 29, 2020 694

G.2. Record of Special In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - April 6, 2021 695

G.3. Record of Special In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - April 19,
2021

696

H. NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS

H.1. New Business

Page 5 of 698



a. Trustee Paynter - FY 2021-/22 Budget Process 697

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of Greater Victoria (School District
61) direct the Superintendent immediately schedule public
meetings of the Board to enable the board and district
administration to collaboratively develop an annual budget
based on the 2020/21 budget allocations through the review of
all district (by department) and school level allocations at to
include both proposed operating and special purpose funds.

District department leads and school principals will be
expected to submit reports in advance to the Board on
resource allocations and expenditures for the past 3
years and rationales for any proposed change in
resourcing to be considered in the FY 21/22 budget.

•

Meeting topics will be posted in advance to allow for
public presentations specific to the agenda topic.

•

Meetings schedules will be coordinated to enable the
review to be completed, budget proposal finalized and
Board bylaw to be passed by May 17, 2021.

•

H.2. Notice of Motions

I. ADJOURNMENT

Recommended Motion:
That the meeting be adjourned.

 

Page 6 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 1 

 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

MINUTES 

 

March 29, 2021, 7:30 p.m. 

 

Trustees Present: Jordan Watters, Board Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole 

Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze , Diane McNally, Ryan 

Painter, Rob Paynter, Ann Whiteaker 

  

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-Treasurer, 

Chuck Morris, Director, Facilities Services, Andy Canty, Director, 

Information Technology for Learning, Lisa McPhail, 

Communications and Community Engagement Manager , Vicki 

Hanley, Recorder 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING  

The meeting was called to order at 7:37 p.m. 

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees 

Nations, on whose traditional territories, we live, we learn and we do our 

work. 

Chair Watters provided the email address for question period. 

Chair Watters provided a formal apology to the Esquimalt and Songhees 

Nations for the disrespectful behavior exhibited at the March 1, 2021 

Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting.  

A.2 Approval of the Agenda  

Page 7 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 2 

Moved by Trustee Duncan 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the March 29, 2021 agenda be approved with the following addition: 

B. Correspondence 

B.12 March 1, 2021 letter from Songhees Nation Chief and Council to 

Board Chair 

B.13 March 11, 2021 letter from GVTA to Trustees 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee Duncan 

That the March 29, 2021 agenda be approved with the following addition: 

B. Correspondence 

B.14 March 11, 2021 letter from VCPAC to Trustees 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the March 29, 2021 agenda be approved with the following 

amendment: 

E.2.b 2021-2022 Annual Budget moved to B. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the March 29, 2021 agenda be approved with the following addition: 

D.2 Trustee Reports' 

D.2.e Trustee Painter - BCSTA Representative Report 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Page 8 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 3 

Moved by Trustee Hentze 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the March 29, 2021 agenda be approved, as amended. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.3 Approval of the Minutes  

a. Approval of the February 22, 2021 Regular Board Minutes 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the February 22, 2021 Regular Board Minutes be approved. 

Motion Carried 

 

b. Approval of the February 25, 2021 Special Board Minutes 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the February 25, 2021 Special Board Minutes be approved. 

Motion Carried 

 

A.4 Business Arising from the Minutes 

None 

A.5 Student Achievement 

None 

A.6 District Presentations 

None 

A.7 Community Presentations 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

extend the allotted presentation time of speaker, Edith Loring-Kuhanga, 

from five minutes to ten minutes. 

Page 9 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 4 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

a. Edith Loring-Kuhanga, Craigflower School Closure Public 

Consultation 

Edith Loring-Kuhanga, former SD61 Trustee, attended the meeting 

via conference phone to speak to Trustees about the disrespect to 

the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations at the March 1, 2021 

Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting. 

B. 2021-2022 Annual Budget 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris presented Draft 2 of the proposed 2021-2022 annual 

budget and proceeded to explain the $7.1 million shortfall facing the District. 

Secretary-Treasurer provided Trustees the timeline for the budget process and 

upcoming information meetings and special board meetings to receive feedback 

from the public. Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with questions of 

clarification being asked of Secretary-Treasurer Morris. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 2021-

2022 Annual Budget Bylaw in the amount of $258,131,762 be: 

Read a first time the 29th day of March, 2021. 

For (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, 

Trustee Painter, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (3): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, and Trustee Paynter 

Motion Carried (6 to 3) 

 

C. CORRESPONDENCE 

C.1 February 15, 2021, Doncaster PAC to SD61, Strings Program 

C.2 February 21, 2021, SD5 to Ministry of Education, COVID Vaccine for 

Staff 

C.3 February 24, 2021, SD61 to VCPAC, Response re Board Bylaw 

9330.1, Appeals Process 

C.4 February 24, 2021, SD61 to VCPAC, Response to Feb 17, 2021 Letter 

re Invite to Meetings 

Page 10 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 5 

C.5 February 25, 2021, SD61 to Minister of Education and Minister of 

Finance, Net Zero Capital Project Funding 

C.6 March 1, 2021, MOE to SD61, Gender Data Collection in MyEducation 

BC 

C.7 March 1, 2021, SD69 to BCSTA, Letter of Support re School Life 

Cycle Funding 

C.8 March 3, 2021, BCSTA to Ministry of Health and Ministry of 

Education, COVID Vaccine Priority 

C.9 March 9, 2021, Minister of Education to SD69, Child Care 

C.10 March 12, 2021, SD61 Teacher, Matt Christie to Trustees, Racism 

C.11 March 16, 2021, SD57 to Minister of Health and Minister of Education, 

Immunization Plan 

C.12 March 1, 2021, Songhees Nation Chief and Council to Board Chair 

Discussion ensued with regards to the letter received from Songhees 

Nation Chief and Council, with a recommendation being made to remove it 

from the agenda until clarification can be sought from the Nation on 

whether they want it to be included on a public agenda. 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

reconsider adding the March 1, 2021 letter received from Songhees Chief 

and Council to Board Chair Watters, until such time as a confirmation is 

received from the Songhees Nation on whether they give permission to 

include the letter on a public agenda. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

C.13 March 11, 2021, GVTA to Trustees 

C.14 March 11, 2021, VCPAC to Trustees 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

Be it resolved that Trustees send their expression of interest to attend a 

meeting on March 31, 2021 between VCPAC Executive and School 

Page 11 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 6 

District No. 61 Trustees to Chair Watters and Chair Watters will select 

third Trustees who will attend along with herself and Vice-Chair Leonard. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

D. TRUSTEE REPORTS 

D.1 Chair's Report 

a. Chair's Report 

Chair Watters provided a handout of her report and provided 

highlights. The report will be posted on the district website for the 

public. 

b. Annual Workplan: April 

Chair Watters presented for information, the Board Work Plan for 

April 2021. 

D.2 Trustees' Reports  

a. Trustee Hentze  

Trustee Hentze presented her report for the George Jay Naming 

Committee and stated that the Terms of Reference will be brought 

to the April Operations Policy and Planning Committee. 

b. Trustee Paynter 

Trustee Paynter provided a verbal report and advised that he would 

be resigning as Chair of the Audit Committee. 

c. Trustee McNally  

Trustee McNally provided her representative report for the 

Indigenous Nations Education Council and highlighted what she is 

currently reading. 

d. Trustee Duncan 

Trustee Duncan reported that the Police Liaison Ad Hoc Committee 

is currently seeking feedback for experiences that people wish to 

share with respect to their interaction with community police 

officers. Trustee Duncan further stated the professional 

development opportunities she has been involved in. 

e. Trustee Painter 

Page 12 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 7 

Trustee Painter stated that he shared via email his BCSTA Report 

from the February Provincial Council meeting with Trustees and 

advised that  the motions submitted by SD61 Trustees have gone 

to BCSTA AGM for consideration. 

E. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 

E.1 Education Policy and Directions Committee 

a. Draft minutes from the March 1, 2021 meeting  

The draft minutes from the March 1, 2021 Education Policy and 

Directions Committee meeting were provided for information. 

E.2 Operations Policy and Planning Committee 

a. Draft minutes from the March 8, 2021 meeting  

The draft minutes from the March 8, 2021 Operations Policy and 

Planning Committee meeting were provided for information. 

b. Recommended motions from the March 8, 2021 meeting 

a. Craigflower School Closure Public Consultation 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) suspend the Craigflower School Closure 

public consultation plan timeline and direct the 

Superintendent to meet with the Songhees and Esquimalt 

Nations to discuss how they would like to proceed.    

Discussion ensued amongst Trustees with feedback being 

provided by stakeholders and Superintendent Green. 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Seconded by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the motion "That the Board of Education of School 

District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) suspend the Craigflower 

School Closure public consultation plan timeline and direct 

the Superintendent to meet with the Songhees and 

Esquimalt Nations to discuss how they would like to 

proceed" be amended to strike "Superintendent to meet with 

the Songhees and Esquimalt Nations to discuss" and 

Page 13 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 8 

replace with "Chair and Vice-Chair to write to the Chiefs and 

Councils of the Songhees and Esquimalt Nations expressing 

the Board's willingness to meet to listen to the Nations on the 

Nations' terms, regarding their vision for the future of the 

Shoreline and Craigflower buildings, and the Nations' vision 

for education on those sites. 

For (3): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, and Trustee 

Paynter 

Against (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee 

Ferris, Trustee Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Abstain (1): Trustee Whiteaker 

Motion Defeated (3 to 5) 

 

Further discussion ensued amongst Trustees with a 

recommendation being made to amend the motion. 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Duncan 

Seconded by Trustee Paynter 

That the motion "That the Board of Education of School 

District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) suspend the Craigflower 

School Closure public consultation plan timeline and direct 

the Superintendent to meet with the Songhees and 

Esquimalt Nations to discuss how they would like to 

proceed" be amended to include the words " and Shoreline 

School" after Craigflower School. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Chair Watters called for the vote on the main motion as 

amended. 

Moved by  

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) suspend the Craigflower School and 

Shoreline School Closure public consultation plan timeline 

and direct the Superintendent to meet with the Songhees 

Page 14 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 9 

and Esquimalt Nations to discuss how they would like to 

proceed.    

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Painter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Against (1): Trustee Paynter 

Abstain (1): Trustee McNally 

Motion Carried (7 to 1) 

 

b. Advocacy Ad Hoc Committee - Terms of Reference 

Moved by  

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) approve the Advocacy Ad Hoc Committee 

Terms of Reference, as amended. 

For (8): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, 

Trustee Hentze, Trustee McNally, Trustee Painter, Trustee 

Paynter, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Abstain (1): Trustee Duncan 

Motion Carried (8 to 0) 

 

c. Standing Committees - Public Participation 

Moved by  

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to implement a 

process to allow active public participation in all standing 

committees as per our bylaws while meetings are conducted 

under COVID 19 health and safety guidelines for April 2021 

Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

E.3 Draft Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board  

Page 15 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 10 

Trustee Whiteaker stated that she had several amendments to suggest 

with regards to Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board. Chair Watters 

advised that Trustees would go through and vote for each suggested 

amendment separately. 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #6: 

6. The first will encompass the agenda, minutes, correspondence, and 

acceptance of presentations from the public and employee groups; 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee Duncan 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #6: 

6. * Individuals or delegations wishing to make a presentation will be 

advised of their placement on an upcoming agenda on the Wednesday 

Friday before the Regular meeting. Presentations on behalf of groups will 

be presentation by the spokesperson(s) of that group, who will be 

identified on the agenda. 

For (1): Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, Trustee Painter, and Trustee Paynter 

Abstain (2): Trustee Duncan, and Trustee McNally 

Motion Defeated (1 to 6) 

 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #9: 

9. All agendas will be prepared by the Chair of the Board, and circulated 

by the Chair or designate. Proposed agenda items will be provided to the 

Page 16 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 11 

Secretary-Treasurer no later than the Tuesday noon Wednesday before 

the meeting. 

For (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Against (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Motion Defeated (4 to 5) 

 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee Duncan 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #7: 

7. The public will be encouraged to attend the Education Policy and 

Directions, or the Operations Policy and Planning Standing Committee 

meetings,  in order to rather than a Board meeting, to facilitate dialogue 

with the public before decisions are made. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #8: 

8. In the event that the Board may fail to conclude the business of the 

agenda by the time of adjournment the Chair may ask the board to 

prioritize the remaining agenda items. Agenda items not concluded at the 

meeting, will be placed on the next month’s agenda, and given priority to 

occur before new business. 

For (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Against (3): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, and Trustee Ferris 

Abstain (2): Trustee Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Motion Carried (4 to 3) 

 

Page 17 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 12 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #12: 

12. An electronic copy of the General Meeting Agenda shall will be made 

available to the media, partner groups and the public (website) through the 

Secretary-Treasurer's office on the day after copies are delivered to 

trustees, and such Agenda shall have attached the Committee Reports. 

three days before the meeting. 

For (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Against (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Motion Defeated (4 to 5) 

 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #15: 

15. With the exception of poll votes pursuant to Bylaw 9011, and 

electronic meetings called by the Chair, the Board will not conduct 

meetings electronically. For the purposes of this bylaw, electronic 

communications that would constitute a meeting include communications 

shared among all trustees that materially advance or debate a the debate 

on any matter before the Board. This Bylaw does not prohibit the 

electronic provision of information pertaining to a matter before the Board. 

For (2): Trustee McNally, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, Trustee Painter, and Trustee Paynter 

Abstain (1): Trustee Duncan 

Motion Defeated (2 to 6) 

 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

Page 18 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 13 

Be it resolved that only ten more minutes is spent on discussing and 

amending Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board. 

Motion Carried 

 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Seconded by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #4: 

4. The Chair, the Secretary-Treasurer or any three trustees, may call a 

special or extra-ordinary meeting of the Board, in addition to the regularly 

scheduled general meetings of the Board. 

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Duncan, Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, 

Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (1): Trustee Leonard 

Abstain (1): Trustee Painter 

Motion Carried (7 to 1) 

 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Seconded by Trustee Duncan 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

amend Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, under point #7: 

7. In addition to the opportunities to participate at Standing Committees, 

the Board Chair will ask partner groups including the Greater Victoria 

Teachers’ Association (GVTA), the Canadian Union of Public Employees 

(CUPE Locals 947 and 382), the Victoria Confederation of Parent 

Advisory Councils (VCPAC), Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, Student 

Representatives, and the Victoria Principals and Vice-Principals 

Association (VPVPA), whether they would like to provide comment on 

motions prior to them being debated by the Board after the rationale has 

been presented by the mover. Each stakeholder representative will have 

up to two minutes to provide comment through the Chair. 

Page 19 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 14 

For (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Against (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Motion Defeated (4 to 5) 

 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

approve revised Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board, as amended. 

For (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Against (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and 

Trustee Whiteaker 

Motion Carried (5 to 4) 

 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

agree to give all three readings to revised Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of 

the Board at the meeting of March 29, 2021. 

Motion to be Carried Unanimously 

For (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Against (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and 

Trustee Whiteaker 

Motion Defeated (5 to 4) 

 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board be: 

Read a first time the 29th day of March, 2021. 

Page 20 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 15 

For (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Against (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and 

Trustee Whiteaker 

Motion Carried (5 to 4) 

 

E.4 Recess 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

recess for five minutes from 10:41 p.m. to 10:46 p.m. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

F. DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS 

F.1 Superintendent's Report 

a. Monthly Report 

Superintendent Green provided the report for information. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) receive the Superintendent's report as presented. 

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Painter, and Trustee 

Paynter 

Abstain (2): Trustee McNally, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Motion Carried (7 to 0) 

 

b. Trustee Questions 

Trustee Paynter requested an update with respect to the 

information he requested regarding the Victoria High School track. 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris advised that the information has not 

Page 21 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 16 

been gathered yet and requested one more month to provide that 

to Trustees. 

F.2 Secretary-Treasurer's Report 

a. Monthly Report 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris provided the report and answered 

questions of clarification. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) receive the Secretary- Treasurer's report as presented. 

For (8): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Painter, Trustee Paynter, 

and Trustee Whiteaker 

Abstain (1): Trustee McNally 

Motion Carried (8 to 0) 

 

b. Lansdowne Land Disposal Public Engagement Plan 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris presented a timeline for the public 

engagement process for the Lansdowne Middle School land 

disposal. Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with questions 

of clarification being asked of Secretary-Treasurer Morris. 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) approve the public engagement plan to consult on the 

disposal of 7.3 acres at Lansdowne Middle School site, as 

presented. 

For (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Against (3): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, and Trustee Paynter 

Abstain (1): Trustee Whiteaker 

Page 22 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 17 

Motion Carried (5 to 3) 

 

c. Motion to Extend Meeting 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) extend the meeting time past 11:00 p.m.  

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Painter, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Abstain (2): Trustee Hentze, and Trustee McNally 

Motion Carried (7 to 0) 

 

d. Annual Five-Year Capital Plan Submission for 2021/22 - Ministry of 

Education Response 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris presented the responses provided to 

the Ministry of Education for the District Annual Five Year Capital 

Plan submission for 2021-22. Discussion ensued amongst the 

Trustees with questions of clarification being asked of Secretary-

Treasurer Morris. 

G. QUESTION PERIOD  

Q. Could Trustee Paynter elaborate on the investigative role taken away from the 

Audit Committee? 

A. Trustee Paynter advised that he would provide a written report and 

explanation for the April 26, 2021 Board meeting agenda. 

H. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS 

H.1 Record of In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - February 22, 2020 

H.2 Record of Special In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - March 4, 

2021 

H.3 Record of Special In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - March 11, 

2021 

I. NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS 

Page 23 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 18 

I.1 New Business 

a. Policy Sub-Committee - Trustee Whiteaker 

Trustee Whiteaker presented the motion and rationale. 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) direct the Chair to call the question. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) suspend the work of the Policy Sub-Committee until the 

Board has had an opportunity to review and debate the “Review of 

SD 61 Policies” as presented to the Operations Policy and Planning 

Committee for information on November 9, 2020 and approve, 

amend or reject the plan. 

For (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and 

Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, 

Trustee Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Motion Defeated (4 to 5) 

 

b. Before and After School Child Care - Trustee McNally 

Trustee McNally requested that the motion be tabled to the October 

2021 Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting as per 

the March 8, 2021 OPPS meeting. 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the motion "That the Board of Education of School District No. 

61 (Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to staff early child 

care / child care before and after school programs with first 

consideration to CUPE 947 members who apply for the positions. 

Page 24 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 19 

AND FURTHER; 

That CUPE 947 EAs immediately / as soon as possible be offered 

the positions at their current hourly wage before wide 

advertisement or SD61staff contracting with other community 

provider(s)" be tabled until October 2021 Operations Policy and 

Planning Committee meeting. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

c. Letter to Dr. Henry re Mask Mandate - Trustee McNally 

Trustee McNally presented the motion and rationale. 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Seconded by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) direct the Board Chair to write a letter to Dr. Henry 

expressing support for a broadened mask mandate for schools that 

includes mask wearing by students K-12, staff, and any adults in 

school buildings in all school spaces, with exceptions on a case by 

case basis to be made by principals, with a documented reason for 

an exemption. 

Trustees discussed the motion and current mandates and Trustee 

McNally withdrew the motion. 

I.2 Notice of Motions 

None 

J. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 11:29 p.m. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the meeting be adjourned. 

  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 

Page 25 of 698



 

March 29, 2021/Regular Board Minutes 20 

 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 26 of 698



 

April 13, 2021/Special Board Meeting 1 

 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

MINUTES 

 

April 13, 2021, 6:00 p.m. 

 

Trustees Present: Jordan Watters, Board Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole 

Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze , Diane McNally, Ryan 

Painter, Rob Paynter, Ann Whiteaker 

  

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-Treasurer, 

Andy Canty, Director, Learning for Information Technology, Julie 

Lutner, Director of Finance, Financial Services, Lisa McPhail, 

Communications and Community Engagement Manager , Vicki 

Hanley, Recorder 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING  

The meeting was called to order at 6:02 p.m. 

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees 

Nations, on whose traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our 

work. 

A.2 Approval of the Agenda  

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Ferris 

That the April 13, 2021 agenda be approved. 

Page 27 of 698



 

April 13, 2021/Special Board Meeting 2 

For (8): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, Trustee 

Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Painter, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Abstain (1): Trustee McNally 

Motion Carried (8 to 0) 

 

B. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

B.1 Cheryl McKinnon, SD61 Parent 

Cheryl McKinnon attended the meeting to speak to Trustees about the 

District music programs and how they have impacted her family. Ms. 

McKinnon urged Trustees to reconsider cutting programs in the 2021-

2022 budget process. 

B.2 Cindy Romphf, SD61 Teacher 

Cindy Romphf, a music teacher at Cedar Hill Middle School, attended the 

meeting to speak to Trustees about the importance of music in the middle 

school years and implored Trustees to re-think cutting music and strings 

programs from the District. 

B.3 Noelle Davis, Braefoot Elementary PAC Member 

Noelle Davis, a Braefoot Elementary PAC member, attended the meeting 

to speak against cuts to music, strings and band programs in elementary 

and middle schools in the District.  

B.4 Caitlin Davies, SD61 Parent 

Caitlin Davies, a parent with students attending school in the District, 

attended the meeting to speak in favour of the music, strings and band 

programs and urged Trustees against cutting these programs. 

B.5 Elin Kelsey, Island Ukuleles 

Elin Kelsey attended the meeting on behalf of Island Ukuleles to speak to 

Trustees about the program and how it has impacted Greater Victoria 

students over many years. Ms. Kelsey urged Trustees to reconsider 

cutting music and strings programs during the budget process. 

 

 

Page 28 of 698



 

April 13, 2021/Special Board Meeting 3 

B.6 Jessie Swan, SD61 Student 

Jessie Swan, a grade 8 student at Cedar Hill Middle School, attended the 

meeting to speak to Trustees about her experience in the music program 

and how it has benefited her.  

C. 2021-2022 ANNUAL BUDGET 

C.1 2021-2022 Budget Presentation 

Chair Watters thanked all community speakers for attending and 

presenting to the Board. 

Superintendent Green reiterated her thanks to all speakers and stated that 

this budget process is going to be very difficult for staff and trustees, with 

many tough decisions to be made in order to balance the budget. 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris presented Draft 3 of the 2021-2022 annual 

budget and proceeded to explain the $7.1 million deficit facing the District. 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris provided Trustees with staff recommendations 

and ways in which to mitigate the deficit in order to submit a balanced 

budget to the Ministry, as per the School Act. The presentation focused on 

the main tenent's of the budget: alignment to the learning needs of 

students through the strategic plan, operational plan and school growth 

plan, and living within district means. 

Discussion ensued with questions being asked of Secretary-Treasurer 

Morris from Stakeholders and Trustees. 

C.2 Recess 

The meeting recessed at 7:35 p.m. 

Moved by Trustee Ferris 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

break for a short recess. 

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, Trustee 

Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee McNally, and Trustee Painter 

Against (2): Trustee Paynter, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Motion Carried (7 to 2) 

 

Chair Watters called the meeting back in session at 7:37 p.m. 

Page 29 of 698



 

April 13, 2021/Special Board Meeting 4 

C.3 Motions to Rescind 

a. September 2016 - Learning Resources 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris explained to Trustees that it was staff 

recommendation to rescind the following motions in an effort to use 

this unspent money on the 2021-2022 budget deficit. Discussion 

ensued amongst the Trustees with questions of clarification being 

asked of Secretary-Treasurer Morris. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Ferris 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) rescind the unspent $242,137 of the $500,000 

commitment in the following motion that was carried at the 

September 26, 2016 Regular Board of Education meeting: 

"That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) approve $500,000 of the June 30, 2016 unrestricted 

operating surplus of $4,641,593 (Note E) to provide learning 

resources to support the new curriculum." 

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Painter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Against (2): Trustee McNally, and Trustee Paynter 

Motion Carried (7 to 2) 

 

b. September 2017 - Library Support 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Ferris 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) rescind the the unspent $31,980 of the $100,000 

commitment in the following motion that was carried at the 

September 25, 2017 Regular Board of Education meeting: 

"That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) approve $100,000 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted 

operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) to provide district-wide 

library support." 

Page 30 of 698



 

April 13, 2021/Special Board Meeting 5 

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Painter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Against (2): Trustee McNally, and Trustee Paynter 

Motion Carried (7 to 2) 

 

C.4 2021-2022 Annual Budget 

Chair Watters advised Trustees that the 2nd reading of the 2021-2022 

Annual Budget Bylaw will be placed on the floor until the Board of 

Education meeting of May 17, 2021, at which time debate and voting will 

take place. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

place the 2nd reading of the 2021-2022 Annual Budget Bylaw in the 

amount of $252,049,842 on the floor until May 17, 2021. 

D. NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS 

D.1 New Business 

None 

D.2 Notice of Motions 

a. Trustee Paynter - April 26th 2021 Board of Education Agenda 

Trustee Paynter provided a Notice of Motion for the April 26, 2021 

Board of Education to suspend the current budget process and 

convert the 2021-2022 budget to a rollover budget with adjustment 

for enrolment. 

E. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 8:28 p.m. 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the meeting be adjourned. 

  

Page 31 of 698



 

April 13, 2021/Special Board Meeting 6 

Motion Carried 

 

 

 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 32 of 698



 

 

 
March 31, 2021 
 
 
The Honourable Jennifer Whiteside 
Minister of Education 
PO Box 9045, Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria BC V8W 9E2 
 
 
Dear Minister Whiteside, 
 
Subject: School Life Cycle Funding  
 
On behalf of British Columbia’s boards of education, please accept the attached report titled 
“The Case for Increased School Life Cycle Funding.” 
 
This paper was written by BCSTA’s Capital Working Group with input from every board of 
education in B.C. The report, endorsed by our board of directors, focuses on the province-wide 
need to address steadily increasing levels of deferred life cycle maintenance.  
 
Due to a lack of adequate funding for building maintenance, boards of education are currently 
unable to maintain consistent regular maintenance on school buildings. The implications of this 
have been highlighted during the COVID-19 pandemic. Regular maintenance for facilities is 
critical to providing safe, efficient learning environments for children and that this can be best 
achieved with adequate annual funding. 
 
BCSTA’s board of directors looks forward to discussing the report with you at a future date, and 
we thank you for your consideration of this important area of concern. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Stephanie Higginson 
President 
British Columbia School Trustees Association  
 
Enclosure:  Report: The Case for Increased School Life Cycle Funding 
 
CC:  Scott MacDonald, Deputy Minister  

 BCSTA member boards of education 

Page 33 of 698



VIA EMAIL 
April 1, 2021 

Honourable Jennifer Whiteside 
Minister of Education 
PO Box 9045, Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9E2 

Honourable Mike Farnworth 
Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General 
PO Box 9010 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9E2 

Dear Ministers Whiteside and Farnworth: 

Currently, inmates in Provincial Correctional Centres have access to Continuing Education 
programs when there is an agreement in place with a local school district. The Ministry of 
Education currently allocates funding for these programs to school districts based on the 
funding model for Continuing Education. This results in instability in funding and presents a 
threat to the continuity of service. The Chilliwack School District has one such arrangement 
with the Ford Mountain Correctional Centre. 

The Continuing Education program at Ford Mountain is currently attached to Kwíyeqel 
Secondary School and has one district staff member. Since 2011, the program at Ford 
Mountain has been funded by Chilliwack School District operating dollars and has cost the 
district an additional $303,000 to maintain, plus overhead costs. 

As you are aware, there is a direct link between low literacy rates and high incidents of 
crime. We know that partnerships between school districts and correctional facilities have 
great value in that they provide disadvantaged individuals with necessary life skills as well 
as helping to decrease criminal activity in BC communities. 

The Funding Model Working Group Implementation Report for Adult and Continuing 
Education recognized the precariousness of the current funding model for these Continuing 
Education programs, acknowledging that recommendation 11 of the K-12 Public Education 
Funding Review, “may not provide enough support for unique or small programs (e.g., 
Programs in [provincial] correctional centres).” The working group report recommended 
possible mitigation strategies, including targeted funding for indigenous adult learners and 
moving away from the course-based funding to a more stable program-based funding 
model. 

The Chilliwack Board of Education requests that the Ministry of Education and the Ministry 
of Public Safety & Solicitor General allocate sustained special purpose funding to provide 
year-round educational services in correctional facilities being supported by public school 
districts. A commitment from government to provide year-round educational services would 

Page 34 of 698



 
make it possible for us to continue to provide potential life and community changing 
educational opportunities.  
 
I would like to close with some inspiring words from a former Ford Mountain student named 
Troy who spoke at our public Board Meeting on January 14, 2020: “I remember never 
feeling like I was stuck…every course was a good challenge…math was all of a sudden a 
strong suit for me…never in my entire life did I think I would be sitting, laughing, figuring 
things out.” Troy graduated at Ford Mountain and went on to enrol in the University of the 
Fraser Valley. 
 
I appreciate your consideration of this request. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you 
have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Willow Reichelt 
Chair – Board of Education 
Chilliwack School District #33 
 
 
C:  Mr. Dan Coulter, M.L.A., Chilliwack 

Ms. Kelli Paddon, M.L.A., Chilliwack-Kent 
All Boards of Education c/o the BC School Trustees Association 
Mr. Rohan Arul-pragasam, Interim Superintendent Chilliwack School District 
Mr. Gerry Slykhuis, Secretary Treasurer Chilliwack School District 

Page 35 of 698



Page 36 of 698



Page 37 of 698



Page 38 of 698



Page 39 of 698



Page 40 of 698



Page 41 of 698



Page 42 of 698



Page 43 of 698



Page 44 of 698



Page 45 of 698



Page 46 of 698



Page 47 of 698



Page 48 of 698



Page 49 of 698



Page 50 of 698



Page 51 of 698



Page 52 of 698



Page 53 of 698



Page 54 of 698



Page 55 of 698



Page 56 of 698



Page 57 of 698



Page 58 of 698



Page 59 of 698



Page 60 of 698



Page 61 of 698



Page 62 of 698



Page 63 of 698



Page 64 of 698



Page 65 of 698



Page 66 of 698



Page 67 of 698



Page 68 of 698



Page 69 of 698



Page 70 of 698



Page 71 of 698



Page 72 of 698



Page 73 of 698



Page 74 of 698



Page 75 of 698



Page 76 of 698



Page 77 of 698



Page 78 of 698



Page 79 of 698



Page 80 of 698



Page 81 of 698



Page 82 of 698



Page 83 of 698



Page 84 of 698



Page 85 of 698



Page 86 of 698



Page 87 of 698



Page 88 of 698



Page 89 of 698



Page 90 of 698



Page 91 of 698



Page 92 of 698



Page 93 of 698



Page 94 of 698



Page 95 of 698



Page 96 of 698



Page 97 of 698



Page 98 of 698



Page 99 of 698



Page 100 of 698



Page 101 of 698



Page 102 of 698



Page 103 of 698



Page 104 of 698



Page 105 of 698



Page 106 of 698



Page 107 of 698



Page 108 of 698



Page 109 of 698



Page 110 of 698



Page 111 of 698



Page 112 of 698



Page 113 of 698



Page 114 of 698



Page 115 of 698



Page 116 of 698



Page 117 of 698



Page 118 of 698



Page 119 of 698



Page 120 of 698



Page 121 of 698



Page 122 of 698



Page 123 of 698



Page 124 of 698



Page 125 of 698



Page 126 of 698



Page 127 of 698



Page 128 of 698



Page 129 of 698



Page 130 of 698



Page 131 of 698



Page 132 of 698



Page 133 of 698



Page 134 of 698



Page 135 of 698



Page 136 of 698



Page 137 of 698



Page 138 of 698



Page 139 of 698



Page 140 of 698



Page 141 of 698



Page 142 of 698



Page 143 of 698



Page 144 of 698



Page 145 of 698



Page 146 of 698



Page 147 of 698



Page 148 of 698



Page 149 of 698



Page 150 of 698



Page 151 of 698



Page 152 of 698



Page 153 of 698



Page 154 of 698



Page 155 of 698



Page 156 of 698



Page 157 of 698



Page 158 of 698



Page 159 of 698



Page 160 of 698



Page 161 of 698



Page 162 of 698



Page 163 of 698



Page 164 of 698



Page 165 of 698



Page 166 of 698



Page 167 of 698



Page 168 of 698



Page 169 of 698



Page 170 of 698



Page 171 of 698



Page 172 of 698



Page 173 of 698



Page 174 of 698



Page 175 of 698



Page 176 of 698



Page 177 of 698



Page 178 of 698



Page 179 of 698



Page 180 of 698



Page 181 of 698



Page 182 of 698



Page 183 of 698



Page 184 of 698



Page 185 of 698



Page 186 of 698



Page 187 of 698



Page 188 of 698



Page 189 of 698



Page 190 of 698



Page 191 of 698



Page 192 of 698



Page 193 of 698



Page 194 of 698



Page 195 of 698



Page 196 of 698



Page 197 of 698



Page 198 of 698



Page 199 of 698



Page 200 of 698



Page 201 of 698



Page 202 of 698



Page 203 of 698



Page 204 of 698



Page 205 of 698



Page 206 of 698



Page 207 of 698



Page 208 of 698



Page 209 of 698



Page 210 of 698



Page 211 of 698



Page 212 of 698



Page 213 of 698



Page 214 of 698



Page 215 of 698



Page 216 of 698



Page 217 of 698



Page 218 of 698



Page 219 of 698



Page 220 of 698



Page 221 of 698



Page 222 of 698



Page 223 of 698



Page 224 of 698



Page 225 of 698



Page 226 of 698



Page 227 of 698



Page 228 of 698



Page 229 of 698



Page 230 of 698



Page 231 of 698



Page 232 of 698



Page 233 of 698



Page 234 of 698



Page 235 of 698



Page 236 of 698



Page 237 of 698



Page 238 of 698



Page 239 of 698



Page 240 of 698



Page 241 of 698



Page 242 of 698



Page 243 of 698



Page 244 of 698



Page 245 of 698



Page 246 of 698



Page 247 of 698



Page 248 of 698



Page 249 of 698



Page 250 of 698



Page 251 of 698



Page 252 of 698



Page 253 of 698



Page 254 of 698



Page 255 of 698



Page 256 of 698



Page 257 of 698



Page 258 of 698



Page 259 of 698



Page 260 of 698



Page 261 of 698



Page 262 of 698



Page 263 of 698



Page 264 of 698



Page 265 of 698



Page 266 of 698



Page 267 of 698



Page 268 of 698



Page 269 of 698



Page 270 of 698



Page 271 of 698



Page 272 of 698



Page 273 of 698



Page 274 of 698



Page 275 of 698



Page 276 of 698



Page 277 of 698



Page 278 of 698



Page 279 of 698



Page 280 of 698



Page 281 of 698



Page 282 of 698



Page 283 of 698



Page 284 of 698



Page 285 of 698



Page 286 of 698



Page 287 of 698



Page 288 of 698



Page 289 of 698



Page 290 of 698



Page 291 of 698



Page 292 of 698



Page 293 of 698



Page 294 of 698



Page 295 of 698



Page 296 of 698



Page 297 of 698



Page 298 of 698



Page 299 of 698



Page 300 of 698



Page 301 of 698



Page 302 of 698



Page 303 of 698



Page 304 of 698



Page 305 of 698



Page 306 of 698



Page 307 of 698



Page 308 of 698



Page 309 of 698



Page 310 of 698



Page 311 of 698



Page 312 of 698



Page 313 of 698



Page 314 of 698



Page 315 of 698



Page 316 of 698



Page 317 of 698



Page 318 of 698



Page 319 of 698



Page 320 of 698



Page 321 of 698



Page 322 of 698



Page 323 of 698



Page 324 of 698



Page 325 of 698



Page 326 of 698



Page 327 of 698



Page 328 of 698



Page 329 of 698



Page 330 of 698



Page 331 of 698



Page 332 of 698



Page 333 of 698



Page 334 of 698



Page 335 of 698



Page 336 of 698



Page 337 of 698



Page 338 of 698



Page 339 of 698



Page 340 of 698



Page 341 of 698



Page 342 of 698



Page 343 of 698



Page 344 of 698



Page 345 of 698



Page 346 of 698



Page 347 of 698



Page 348 of 698



Page 349 of 698



Page 350 of 698



Page 351 of 698



Page 352 of 698



Page 353 of 698



Page 354 of 698



Page 355 of 698



Page 356 of 698



Page 357 of 698



Page 358 of 698



Page 359 of 698



Page 360 of 698



Page 361 of 698



Page 362 of 698



Page 363 of 698



Page 364 of 698



Page 365 of 698



Page 366 of 698



Page 367 of 698



Page 368 of 698



Page 369 of 698



Page 370 of 698



Page 371 of 698



Page 372 of 698



Page 373 of 698



Page 374 of 698



Page 375 of 698



Page 376 of 698



Page 377 of 698



Page 378 of 698



Page 379 of 698



Page 380 of 698



Page 381 of 698



Page 382 of 698



Page 383 of 698



Page 384 of 698



Page 385 of 698



Page 386 of 698



Page 387 of 698



Page 388 of 698



Page 389 of 698



Page 390 of 698



Page 391 of 698



Page 392 of 698



Page 393 of 698



Page 394 of 698



Page 395 of 698



Page 396 of 698



Page 397 of 698



Page 398 of 698



Page 399 of 698



Page 400 of 698



Page 401 of 698



Page 402 of 698



Page 403 of 698



Page 404 of 698



Page 405 of 698



Page 406 of 698



Page 407 of 698



Page 408 of 698



Page 409 of 698



Page 410 of 698



Page 411 of 698



Page 412 of 698



Page 413 of 698



Page 414 of 698



Page 415 of 698



Page 416 of 698



Page 417 of 698



Page 418 of 698



Page 419 of 698



Page 420 of 698



Page 421 of 698



Page 422 of 698



Page 423 of 698



Page 424 of 698



Page 425 of 698



Page 426 of 698



Page 427 of 698



Page 428 of 698



Page 429 of 698



Page 430 of 698



Page 431 of 698



Page 432 of 698



Page 433 of 698



Page 434 of 698



Page 435 of 698



Page 436 of 698



Page 437 of 698



Page 438 of 698



Page 439 of 698



Page 440 of 698



Page 441 of 698



Page 442 of 698



Page 443 of 698



Page 444 of 698



Page 445 of 698



Page 446 of 698



Page 447 of 698



Page 448 of 698



Page 449 of 698



Page 450 of 698



Page 451 of 698



Page 452 of 698



Page 453 of 698



Page 454 of 698



Page 455 of 698



Page 456 of 698



Page 457 of 698



Page 458 of 698



Page 459 of 698



Page 460 of 698



Page 461 of 698



Page 462 of 698



Page 463 of 698



Page 464 of 698



Page 465 of 698



Page 466 of 698



Page 467 of 698



Page 468 of 698



Page 469 of 698



Page 470 of 698



Page 471 of 698



Page 472 of 698



Page 473 of 698



Page 474 of 698



Page 475 of 698



Page 476 of 698



Page 477 of 698



Page 478 of 698



Page 479 of 698



Page 480 of 698



Page 481 of 698



Page 482 of 698



Page 483 of 698



Page 484 of 698



Page 485 of 698



Page 486 of 698



Page 487 of 698



Page 488 of 698



Page 489 of 698



Page 490 of 698



Page 491 of 698



Page 492 of 698



Page 493 of 698



Page 494 of 698



Page 495 of 698



Page 496 of 698



Page 497 of 698



Page 498 of 698



Page 499 of 698



Page 500 of 698



Page 501 of 698



Page 502 of 698



Page 503 of 698



Page 504 of 698



Page 505 of 698



Page 506 of 698



Page 507 of 698



Page 508 of 698



Page 509 of 698



Page 510 of 698



Page 511 of 698



Page 512 of 698



Page 513 of 698



Page 514 of 698



Page 515 of 698



Page 516 of 698



Page 517 of 698



Page 518 of 698



Page 519 of 698



Page 520 of 698



Page 521 of 698



Page 522 of 698



Page 523 of 698



Page 524 of 698



Page 525 of 698



Page 526 of 698



Page 527 of 698



Page 528 of 698



Page 529 of 698



Page 530 of 698



Page 531 of 698



Page 532 of 698



Page 533 of 698



Page 534 of 698



Page 535 of 698



Page 536 of 698



Page 537 of 698



Page 538 of 698



Page 539 of 698



Page 540 of 698



Page 541 of 698



Page 542 of 698



Page 543 of 698



Page 544 of 698



Page 545 of 698



Page 546 of 698



Page 547 of 698



Page 548 of 698



Page 549 of 698



Page 550 of 698



Page 551 of 698



Page 552 of 698



Page 553 of 698



Page 554 of 698



Page 555 of 698



Page 556 of 698



Page 557 of 698



Page 558 of 698



Page 559 of 698



Page 560 of 698



Page 561 of 698



Page 562 of 698



Page 563 of 698



Page 564 of 698



Page 565 of 698



Page 566 of 698



Page 567 of 698



Page 568 of 698



Page 569 of 698



Page 570 of 698



Page 571 of 698



Page 572 of 698



Page 573 of 698



Page 574 of 698



Page 575 of 698



Page 576 of 698



Page 577 of 698



Page 578 of 698



Page 579 of 698



Page 580 of 698



Page 581 of 698



Page 582 of 698



Page 583 of 698



Page 584 of 698



Page 585 of 698



Page 586 of 698



Page 587 of 698



Page 588 of 698



Page 589 of 698



Page 590 of 698



Page 591 of 698



Page 592 of 698



Page 593 of 698



Page 594 of 698



Page 595 of 698



Page 596 of 698



Page 597 of 698



Page 598 of 698



Page 599 of 698



Page 600 of 698



Page 601 of 698



Page 602 of 698



Page 603 of 698



Page 604 of 698



Page 605 of 698



Page 606 of 698



Page 607 of 698



Page 608 of 698



Page 609 of 698



Page 610 of 698



Page 611 of 698



Page 612 of 698



Page 613 of 698



Page 614 of 698



Page 615 of 698



Page 616 of 698



Page 617 of 698



Page 618 of 698



Page 619 of 698



Page 620 of 698



Page 621 of 698



Page 622 of 698



Page 623 of 698



Page 624 of 698



Page 625 of 698



Page 626 of 698



Page 627 of 698



Page 628 of 698



Page 629 of 698



Page 630 of 698



Page 631 of 698



Page 632 of 698



Page 633 of 698



 
 

 

 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Jordan Watters, Board Chair  

RE:  Chair’s Report  

DATE:  April 26, 2021 

 

I am happy to report that Trustee Ryan Painter has been appointed to the Audit Committee. 

Update on Activities 

 March 31 – BCSTA Board Chair’s Meeting with Dr. Gustafson and Dr.McKee 

 April 6 – Education Policy and Directions 

 April 7 – Agenda Setting 

 April 12 – Operations Policy and Planning 

 April 13 – Agenda Setting 

 April 13 – Special Board Budget Meeting 

 April 15 – Budget Working Session #1  

 April 15 – BCSTA AGM 

 April 16 – BCSTA AGM 

 April 17 – BCSTA AGM 

 April 19 – Trustee Professional Development 

 April 19 – Special In-Camera Board Meeting    

 April 20 – Agenda Setting 

 April 21 – BCSTA Board Chair’s Meeting 

 April 21 – 2021-2022 Public Budget Information Session  

 April 22 – Budget Working Session #2 
 

BC School Trustee’s Association – Annual General Meeting  

This virtual conference and business meeting was incredibly successful and well attended. Trustees 

engaged and debated 42 motions. I am happy to report that the three motions our Board brought to 

BCSTA were passed by the assembly. Those motions were: 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112

Chair: Jordan Watters  Vice-Chair: Elaine Leonard 

   Trustees: Ann Whiteaker, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze, 

Diane McNally, Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter 

Page 634 of 698



 
 

 

 

 Be it resolved: That BCSTA urge the Ministry of Education to fully fund the Middle Years 
Development Instrument (MDI) in the same manner as the ministry funds the Early Years 
Development Instrument (EDI). 
 

 Be it resolved: That BCSTA request the Ministry of Education to begin working with school 
districts to plan for the implementation of the government’s goal of moving Childcare and 
Early Learning responsibility from the Ministry of Children and Family Development to the 
Ministry of Education by 2023; and, that the government provide school districts with the 
financial resources to prepare for this transition. 
 

 Be it resolved: That BCSTA urge the Ministry of Education and the Ministry of Finance to 
fully fund netzero school capital upgrade and replacement projects, effective immediately. 

Committee Work 

As part of my work on the BCSTA Student Citizenship Award Committee I reviewed assessed 77 

student essay submissions addressing good citizenship. The quality of the essays was inspiring, and 

well worth the many hours I invested in reading them. 

Professional Development 

This month I read Educated by Tara Westover which is a powerful memoir about a young woman 

who was brought up by Mormon extremists who didn’t believe in formal education or modern 

medicine.  

I am now diving into My Grandmother's Hands: Racialized Trauma and the Pathway to Mending Our 

Hearts and Bodies. This book explores the complex effects of racism on people of colour as well as 

on white people and how we all carry, and are harmed by, the trauma of racism. 

 

Page 635 of 698



MAY
NON-

INSTRUCTIONAL
DAY

MAY 21
BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ACTIVITIES

Strategic Direction
and Context

External Compliance
And Accountability

System Planning And
Performance Monitoring

Engagement with Stakeholders
and Public Recognition Events

 Approve the 2021-2022 Board of Education and Standing Committee Dates

 Approve the 2021-2022 Academy Fees

 Receive Carbon Neutral Action Report for Submission to Climate Action Secretariat by    
May 31st and Receive Energy Manager Report

 Operational Plan Reporting

 Review the Draft Annual Five-Year Capital Plan

 Budget Process Debrief

Page 636 of 698



 

 

 

                                  

 

 TO: Board 

FROM: Trustee Rob Paynter 

Re: Trustee Report 

DATE: 21 April 2021 

 

At the March 29, 2021 Board meeting I advised the Board that I was resigning from my role as Chair of 

the Audit Committee.  At the end of the meeting, a public question was asked regarding my decision. 

Please accept this report as my response to that inquiry. 

I have been a member of the Audit Committee since its creation.  My motivation in taking on this task 

was my desire to see improvements in district practices that contribute to student achievement. To 

prepare for the role I completed the Audit Committee course offered by the Institute of Corporate 

Directors and read extensively from resources provided through the BC Ministry of Education’s Financial 

Health Working Group, BC Auditor General and online resources on the topic.  I am by now means an 

authority but felt comfortable in the role.   

My primary objective in participating in the audit committee’s work was to initiate internal audit 

processes such as those that exist in the neighbouring Sooke School District (SD62) and elsewhere.  

These processes have been useful in examining the allocation of resources with respect to operational 

functions and capital projects. The goal had been to learn from experience, identify weaknesses in policy 

and procedure and make improvements that result in more effective practices that ultimately delivered 

benefits to the classroom. 

The Audit Committee has proven to be an effective mechanism to ask detailed questions regarding 

budget documents and financial updates.  Having direct access to the Secretary Treasurer, Associate 

Secretary Treasurer, Director of Finance, Budgets and Financial Reporting and Manager of Accounting 

has been incredibly helpful in terms of interpreting budget information and reports.  Work undertaken 

to review financial practices in schools has also been well done and identified opportunities to improve 

accounting and security practices. With respect to developing an internal audit capacity based on 

implementation of an organizational risk management framework has been less successful.  I see this as 

my personal responsibility since I was the person most interested in making it happen. Despite my 

challenges I was committed to moving forward with this work until the Board chose to vote on an 

amended terms of reference for the Audit Committee at the January 25, 2021 Board meeting. I made 

my objections clear at both the December 2020 Operations Policy and Planning Committee and January 

2021 Board meetings that the changes proposed to the terms of reference effectively removed the 

Greater Victoria 

School District 
 

Office of 

Trustee Paynter 

Page 637 of 698



capacity of the Audit Committee to undertake independent internal audits of Board practices. In effect 

the Audit Committee, in my personal opinion, has been reduced to a venue for receiving reports 

prepared by staff, reports that can just as easily be reviewed at the Operations Policy and Planning 

Committee.   

The decision to limit the Audit Committee’s investigative capacity comes at a time when there are 

outstanding questions regarding the expense and authorizations of the burnside construction project, 

cost overruns on the SJ Willis renovations and challenges with our annual budget and the ongoing 

structural deficit.  I sincerely believe that having an effective and responsive internal audit capacity can 

be a benefit to the Board in understanding and learning from these situations. Combined with an 

appropriate Risk Management process I believe that we can more effectively steer our organization 

away from the worst of these issues and onto a path that enables us to focus more of our attention and 

efforts on improving student achievement outcomes.  With this in mind, it was my decision that offering 

my resignation was the only means I had at hand to draw attention to my concerns. 

 

 

Page 638 of 698



 

April 6, 2021/Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
 

 

Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 

MINUTES 

 

April 6, 2021 

Broadcasted via YouTube 

https://bit.ly/3czx8bA 

 

Trustees Present: Education Policy and Directions members: Ryan Painter, 

Chair, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Diane McNally, Jordan 

Watters (ex officio) 

Operations Policy and Planning members: Elaine Leonard, 

Rob Paynter. 

  

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Andy Canty, Director, Information Technology 

for Learning, Kelly Gorman, Recorder 

 

Stakeholders: Christine Payne, VCPAC, Cindy Graf, GVTA,  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

The meeting was called to order at 7:05pm 

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Painter recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees 

Nations, on whose traditional territories we live, we learn, and we do our 

work.  

A.2 Approval of the Agenda 

Moved by Trustee Ferris 

Page 639 of 698



 

April 6, 2021/Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
 

That the April 6, 2021 Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting 

agenda be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.3 Approval of the Minutes 

Moved by Trustee Ferris 

That the February 1, 2021 Education Policy and Directions Committee 

Meeting minutes be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.4 Approval of the Minutes 

Trustee McNally requested that the March 1, 2021 Education Policy and 

Directions Committee minutes be amended.   

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Under C.4. Add: a)That the Superintendent abandon the present 4 choice 

plan for Craigflower and Shoreline, and restart the planning process under 

the active and direct guidance from the Lkwungen community in order to 

create a school that honours the culture, history, and wisdom of Lkwungen 

People in its design, vision, goals, & curriculum. b)That the Board of 

Education respectfully request direct updates from the Chiefs or delegates 

of the Songhees and Esquimalt Nations, reporting times and methods of 

reporting to be determined by Chiefs and Councils.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Under A.2. Replace: Chair Painter ruled the addition motion out of order 

as it runs contrary to a motion that is currently in progress.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Page 640 of 698



 

April 6, 2021/Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
 

Under A.2. Add: That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) adjourn the meeting due to perceived lack of respectful 

discussion.  

For (2): Trustee Duncan, and Trustee McNally 

Against (1): Trustee Painter 

Abstain (2): Trustee Ferris, and Trustee Watters 

Motion Carried (2 to 1) 

 

Chair Painter called for the vote on the approval of the March 1, 2021 

minutes as amended. 

Moved by Trustee Ferris 

That the March 1, 2021 Education Policy and Directions Committee 

meeting minutes be approved as amended.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.5 Business Arising from Minutes 

Trustee Duncan inquired as to when the presenters from March 1st, 2021 

Education Policy and Planning Committee meeting are to present. Chair 

Painter stated that all presenters have been informed and moved to 

present at a later date.   

B. NEW BUSINESS 

B.1 Willows Elementary School - Code of Conduct - Brenna O'Connor, 

Principal, Willows Elementary School, Evelyn Morales, Teacher, 

Willows Elementary School, Kelsey Anderson, Teacher, Willows 

Elementary School 

Brenna O'Connor, Principal, Willows Elementary School introduced the 

presentation and explained the process on how the Willows Code of 

Conduct evolved. Trustees provided thanks to Brenna O'Connor, 

Principal, Willows Elementary School, Evelyn Morales, Teacher, Willows 

Elementary and Kelsey Anderson, Teacher, Willows Elementary School. 

 

B.2 District Team Update - Lindsay Johnson, District Vice-Principal 

Page 641 of 698



 

April 6, 2021/Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
 

Lindsay Johnson, District Vice-Principal presented how Pathways and 

Partnerships aims to create equitable and culturally responsive Career 

Education opportunities across K-12 schools to develop the “Educated 

Citizen” in order to close the achievement gap leading to all students’ 

personal success. Trustees provided thanks for the presentation and 

questions of clarification were asked.  

B.3 District Team - Learning Support - Part Two - Pam Halverson, District 

Principal and Sean McCartney, District Principal 

Sean McCartney, District Principal and Pam Halverson, District Principal 

presented the update and explained how the District Team Learning 

department work in four key areas: Home-school partnerships, Effective 

student supports, Professional learning & Infrastructure. Trustees thanked 

staff for the presentation and questions of clarification were asked.  

Moved by Trustee McNally 

That the Board instruct the Superintendent to accept the Learning Team 

offer of a working session on psycho-educational  assessments, and that 

members of the VCPAC Executive and any interested parent be invited to 

attend the Zoom meeting and participate. 

For (2): Trustee Duncan, and Trustee McNally 

Against (3): Trustee Painter, Trustee Ferris, and Trustee Watters 

Motion Defeated (2 to 3) 

 

C. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 8:34pm 

Moved by Trustee Ferris 

Seconded by Trustee Watters 

That the meeting adjourn.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 

 

Page 642 of 698



 

April 6, 2021/Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 643 of 698



 

April 12, 2021/Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
 

 

Operations Policy and Planning Committee Meeting 

REGULAR MINUTES 

 

April 12, 2021, 7:00 p.m. 

Broadcasted via YouTube 

https://bit.ly/3czx8bA 

 

Trustees Present: Operations Policy and Planning Committee members: Elaine 

Leonard (Chair), Rob Paynter, Angie Hentze , Ann Whiteaker, 

Jordan Watters (ex officio) 

Education Policy and Directions Committee members: 

Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris 

  

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-Treasurer, 

Andy Canty, Director, Information Technology for Learning, Kelly 

Gorman, Recorder 

  

Stakeholders: Kristil Hammer, President, VCPAC, Mark Morrison, Second VP 

& Health & Safety Officer, GVTA, Kerrie Proudlove, CUPE 947 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

The meeting was called to order at 7:01pm. 

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Leonard recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and 

Songhees Nations, on whose traditional territories we live, we learn, and 

we do our work.  

A.2 Approval of the Agenda 

Page 644 of 698



 

April 12, 2021/Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the April 12, 2021 Operations Policy and Planning Committee 

meeting agenda be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.3 Approval of the Minutes 

Moved by Trustee Watters 

That the March 8, 2021 Operations Policy and Planning Committee 

meeting minutes be approved, as amended.  

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Under C.1. Remove: "Trustee McNally stated her appreciation for the 

change to the motion." and "Trustee Hentze prefers the Superintendents 

motion, the wording needs to come from the Nations and not from staff." 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Under H.6., I.1. and I.2. change the heading to the topic, not the Trustee 

name.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.4 Business Arising from Minutes 

Trustee Whiteaker asked staff if Jane Massy will be presenting at a future 

Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting. Staff will be reaching 

out to Jane Massy to re-schedule.  

B. PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE 

B.1 Sustainability and Composting - Sadie Fox 

Sadie Fox presented on Sustainability and Composting. Trustees provided 

thanks to Sadie Fox for the informative presentation.  

C. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 

Page 645 of 698



 

April 12, 2021/Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
 

Nil 

D. PERSONNEL ITEMS 

Nil 

E. FINANCE AND LEGAL AFFAIRS 

E.1 Policy Sub-Committee Report 

a. Draft Child Care Policy 1330 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris presented the proposed draft policy. 

Questions of clarification were asked. Trustees asked questions 

and suggested updates.  

Moved by Trustee Watters 

That the Board of Education of Greater Victoria (School District 61) 

disseminate draft Policy 1330, Child Care out for feedback.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

b. New Policy 4116.13, Whistleblower Protection  

Secretary -Treasurer Morris presented Policy 4116.13 

Whistleblower Protection. Questions of clarification were asked. 

Moved by Trustee Watters 

That the Board of Education approve Policy 4116.13 Whistleblower 

Protection, as presented. 

Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation 

being made to refer the motion so staff can provide revisions.  

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Watters 

That the motion "That the Board of Education approve Policy 

4116.13 Whistleblower Protection, as presented" be referred to the 

September 2021 Operations Policy and Planning Committee 

meeting.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Page 646 of 698



 

April 12, 2021/Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
 

c. Defer Draft Bylaw 9140, Ad Hoc Committee of the Board and Draft 

Policy 8251, Trustees' Code of Conduct  

At the February 8, 2021 committee meeting, Bylaw 9140 and Draft 

Policy 8251 were deferred to the March 8, 2021 committee 

meeting. The items were not dispatched at the March meeting and 

require a further deferral. 

Moved by Trustee Hentze 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) defer Draft Bylaw 9140, Ad Hoc Committee of the Board 

and Draft Policy 8251, Trustees' Code of Conduct to the May 10, 

2021 Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting.  

   For (4): Trustee Leonard, Trustee Paynter, Trustee Hentze, and  

   Jordan Watters 

   Against (1): Trustee Whiteaker 

Motion Carried 

 

E.2 Monthly Financial Report - February 2021 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris provided Trustees the Monthly Financial 

Report for February 2021. The yearly revenue and expenses were 

compared against those for the year prior. Questions of clarification were 

asked.  

F. FACILITIES PLANNING 

F.1 Operations Update: April 2021 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris answered questions about the report in 

Director of Facilities Morris’ absence.   

F.2 2020/2021 Lead in Water Report  

Secretary-Treasurer Morris recorded questions to give to Director of 

Facilities Morris to be included on the Operations Update: May 2021.   

G. NEW BUSINESS 

G.1 Budget Allocation Process - Trustee Paynter 

Trustee Paynter provided rationale for the motion. Trustees and 

Stakeholders debated the motion.  

Page 647 of 698



 

April 12, 2021/Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
 

Moved by Trustee Paynter 

That the Board of Education of Greater Victoria (School District 61) direct 

the Superintendent to develop an annual budget process that targets the 

supports needed for vulnerable students (specifically students requiring 

special education assessments, those with special education designations 

and students living in poverty) to fulfill their potential and pursue their 

aspirations as the primary objective, followed by allocation of remaining 

resources on a per student basis. FURTHER, that the District:  

 Make standard the use of early screening tools to identify learning 

difficulties and behavioural or developmental challenges; 

 Provide additional staff time to support early intervention programming 

at the K-5 level; 

 Actively participate in delivering wrap-around programming and 

support for students including inclusive childcare, after school 

programming, and family support programs where appropriate, through 

engaged cooperation with provincial agencies, municipalities and 

community associations. 

  For (1): Trustee Paynter  

  Against (4): Trustee Leonard, Trustee Paynter, Trustee Hentze, and  

  Jordan Watters 

Motion Defeated 

Trustee Watters advised H.2 was intended to be a notice of motion. 

Moved to I.1. 

G.2 Working Committee and Consultation on Compost and Waste - 

Trustee Whiteaker 

Trustee Whiteaker provided rationale for the motion.  

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the Board of Education of SD 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 

Superintendent to oversee the creation of a Working Committee and 

consultation process, as outlined in Bylaw 9210, to prepare a draft 

Compost and Waste policy proposal to ensure consistent practices and 

supports across the district which are in alignment with our environmental 

values and goals. 

Page 648 of 698



 

April 12, 2021/Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
 

Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being 

made to refer the motion.  

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the motion "That the Board of Education of SD 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to oversee the creation of a Working Committee 

and consultation process, as outlined in Bylaw 9210, to prepare a draft 

Compost and Waste policy proposal to ensure consistent practices and 

supports across the district which are in alignment with our environmental 

values and goals" be referred to the May 10, 2021 Operations Policy and 

Planning Committee meeting.  

G.3 N95 Masks - Trustee Paynter 

Trustee Paynter provided rationale for the motion. 

That the Board of Education of Greater Victoria (School District 61) in 

recognition of increasing numbers of COVID-19 in the local community 

and district schools, direct the Superintendent to purchase sufficient 

supplies of N95 (or equivalent standard) masks and eye protection to 

supply all district staff in regular, close contact with students or other staff. 

For (1): Trustee Paynter 

Against (4): Trustee Leonard, Trustee Paynter, Trustee Hentze, and 

Jordan Watters 

Motion Defeated 

 

G.4 George Jay Naming Committee Terms of Reference - Trustee Hentze 

Trustee Hentze provided the George Jay Naming Committee Terms of 

Reference.   

Moved by Trustee Hentze 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

approve the George Jay Naming Committee Terms of Reference as 

presented.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

H. NOTICE OF MOTION 

Page 649 of 698



 

April 12, 2021/Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
 

H.1 Adendum to Bylaw 9360 - Correspondence Treatment - Trustee 

Watters 

Trustee Watters provided a Notice of Motion for the May 10, 2021 

Operations Policy and Planning Committee.  

That the Greater Victoria School District direct the Policy Development 

Sub-Committee to develop an addition or addendum to Bylaw 9360 

addressing the how Board correspondence is managed in order to provide 

clear direction and transparency around Board processes. 

I. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 9:00pm 

Moved by Trustee Watters 

That the meeting adjourn. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 

 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 650 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

POLICY 1330-1     Black=BCSTA Policy Template 

Child Care Policy    Red = additions from Burnaby, 

Coquitlam and West Vancouver drafts 
 

Drafted: February 2021     Green = added by the working group 
Adopted:  

Revised:  

Frequency of Review:  

 
1.0 RATIONALE 

1.1 The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance with respect to how the Board will 
promote the use of Board property for the provision of child care programs between 
the hours of 7 a.m. and 6 p.m. on business days by either the Board or third party 
licensees. 
 

1.2 The use of Board property by licensed child care providers must not disrupt or 
otherwise interfere with the provision of educational activities including early 
learning programs and extracurricular school activities. 

 
2.0 DEFINITIONS 

2.1 In this Policy, the terms “Board property,” “business day,” “child care program,” 
“educational activities” and “licensee” have the meanings given to those terms in the 
School Act. 
 

2.2 “Direct and indirect costs” include: 
i. Utilities; 
ii. Maintenance and repair; 
iii. A reasonable allowance for the cost of providing custodial services; 
iv. A reasonable allowance for time school district administrators and other staff 

spend on matters relating to the use of Board property by licensed child care 
providers. 

 
3.0 POLICY 

3.1 The Board will, on an ongoing basis, assess community need for child care programs 
on Board property, through a process of engagement with employee groups, parents 
and guardians, Indigenous community representatives, Indigenous rights holders, 
Indigenous service providers, municipal partners and existing child care operators. 
The process for engagement will be reviewed on an ongoing basis, and conducted in 
a manner acceptable to the Board. 
 

3.2 If child care programs are to be provided on Board property, the Board will consider, 
on an ongoing basis, whether those programs are best provided by licensees other 
than the Board, the Board, or a combination of both. 

Page 651 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

 
3.3 Child care programs, if operated by the Board, will be operated for a fee no greater 

than the direct costs the Board incurs in providing the child care program. 
 
3.4 Fees for the use of Board property by licensees other than the Board will not exceed 

the direct and indirect costs the Board incurs in making Board property available for 
the child care program in accordance with the School Act and set by the Secretary-
Treasurer from time to time. 

 
3.5 If child care programs are operated by a licensee other than the Board, the Board will 

require the licensee to agree to comply with this Policy. 
 
3.6 In selecting licensees other than the Board to operate a child care program, the Board 

will give special consideration to the candidates’ proposals to:  
 

(a) provide inclusive child care;  
(b) foster Indigenous reconciliation in child care; 
(c) maintain a program philosophy and management concept congruent with the 
values of this Policy and the Board’s Strategic Plan 
(d) demonstrated successful experience as a licensed childcare operator; 
(e ) opt into the Provincial Fee Reduction Initiative; and 
(f) demonstrate financial stability 
(g) utilize the BC Early Learning Framework to guide and support learning 
experiences in childcare settings. 

 
3.7 If the Board decides to operate a child care program, the Board will ensure that it is 

operated in a manner that: 
 

i. fosters Indigenous reconciliation in child care. In particular, the child care 

program will be operated consistently with the following principles of the 

British Columbia Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act: (i) 

Indigenous peoples have the right, without discrimination, to the 

improvement of their economic and social conditions, including in the area of 

education; and (ii) “Indigenous peoples have the right to the dignity and 

diversity of their cultures, traditions, histories and aspirations which shall be 

appropriately reflected in education”; and 
 

ii. is inclusive and consistent with the principles of non-discrimination set out in 

the British Columbia Human Rights Code. 
 
3.8 Any contract with a licensee other than the Board, to provide a child care program 

on Board property must be in writing and subject to review annually no less than 
every [insert number] years. The contract must contain: 

Page 652 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

 
i. a description of the direct and indirect costs for which the licensee is 

responsible, including a provision for late payment or default; 
 

ii. an agreement by the licensee to comply with this policy and all other 
applicable policies of the Board; 

 
iii. a provision describing how the agreement can be terminated by the Board or 

the licensee; 
 

iv. an allocation of responsibility to ensure adequate insurance is in place to 
protect the interests of the Board; 

 
v. a statement that the agreement can only be amended in writing, signed by 

the Board and the licensee; 
 

vi. a requirement for the licensee to maintain appropriate standards of 
performance; 

 
vii. a requirement that the licensee must at all times maintain the required license 

to operate a child care facility; and 
 

viii. Provision for adherence to the Board’s Child Care Handbook 
 

3.9 Prior to entering into or renewing a contract with a licensee other than the Board to 
provide a child care program on Board property, the Board will consider: 
 
i. Whether it is preferable for the Board to become a licensee and operate a 

child care program directly; 
 

ii. the availability of school district staff to provide before and after school care; 
and 

 

iii. whether, with respect to a licensee seeking renewal or extension of a contract, 
the licensee has performed its obligations under this Policy and its contract 
with the Board, with specific regard to performance in respect of providing 
an inclusive child care program and one that promotes indigenous 
reconciliation in child care.       

 
3.10  When the Board decides to change the use of Board property that is being used for 

provision of childcare programming, , the Board will provide written notification to 
the Minister of Education. 
 

Page 653 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

  
4.0 RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1 The Board of Education is responsible to ensure compliance with the School 
Act  

4.2 The Superintendent is responsible to ensure that District policy is upheld 
and regulations are enforced.  

4.3 School-based Administration are responsible to ensure adherence to the 
Board’s Child Care Handbook 

 
5.0 REFERENCES 

5.1 Ministerial Order M326, August 31, 2020 
5.2 School Act Section 85.1, 85.2, 85.3, 85.4, March 5, 2020 

 

 

  

  

Page 654 of 698



 

Terms of Reference 

George Jay Naming Committee 

Purpose: 

Review the George Jay Renaming Consultation Report (provided at the December 9, 2019 Operations 

Policy and Planning Committee meeting) and make a recommendation to the Board of Education to 

rename or retain the current name. 

 

Deliverables: 

Phase One 

 Receive updates from the Equity Scan 

 Establish guiding principles and values for the Committee 

 To assess the history of how George Jay was named. 

 To consider concerns regarding the named school, George Jay. 

 To make a recommendation to the Board of Education on renaming the school.  

 

Phase Two – if the committee recommends to the Board of Education, to rename the school 

 To make a recommendation to the Board of Education on the name for the school.  

1. The committee must conform with the Province’s Naming Privileges Policy, as amended from 

time to time.  

 

Timeline: 

The Committee will report to the Operations Policy and Planning Committee in May 2021 with a 

final report delivered to the Board in the fall of 2021.  

 

Voting: 

Recommendations to be made by consensus. If consensus cannot be reached, multiple options will 

be reported to Operations Policy and Planning Committee. 

Procedural notes: 

Meeting dates, locations, agendas and minutes to be available to the members. (subject to change) 

Page 655 of 698



 

 

REGULATION 1421 

NAMING SCHOOL SITES 

2. When naming a school site, the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

will appoint a committee to oversee consultation for the development of a suitable name. This 

will be done pursuant to Policy 1163 and Regulation 1163 – Consultation. The committee should 

include, at the minimum, the following: 

A) A Trustee 

B) The Superintendent or their designate 

C) The School Principal 

D) A member of the School’s teaching staff 

E) A member of the School’s Parent Advisory Council 

F) Up to 2 members of the Indigenous community 

G) Up to 3 members of the local community 

3. The committee may request that the Board approve a specific name for a school site. The 

request must be accompanied by a report detailing the results of a consultative process carried 

out pursuant to Policy 1163 and Regulation 1163 – Consultation.  

 

Page 656 of 698



1 -
 C

URRENT

Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District. 

Bylaw 9360  Page 1 of 5


We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

BYLAW 9360

GENERAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

1. The Board of Education of School District 61 shall meet in general session on the

fourth Monday of each month except where the fourth Monday is a statutory

holiday, in which case the meeting will take place on the next working day, except

for the months of July and August, when no meeting will be held and for the

month of December, when the meeting shall be on the second Monday of the

month.

2. In addition to the regularly scheduled meetings of the Board in general session, the 

Board, as elected, shall meet for the first time within 30 days after the official 

results of the election of trustees shall have been declared, for the purpose of 

receiving the results, the swearing in of the new trustees, and the selection of the 

Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board.  This inaugural meeting of the Board shall be 

called and chaired by the Secretary-Treasurer of the School District. Each year

thereafter during the term of office, the election of Chair, Vice-Chair, and Board 

representatives to various agencies where the Trustees have regular representation 

and the appointment of Trustees to internal and external committees shall take 

place at the November Board meeting. 

3. The Chair, the Secretary-Treasurer or any three trustees, may call a special general

meeting of the Board, in addition to the regularly scheduled meetings of the Board,

upon not less than forty-eight hours' notice in writing to all trustees.

4. A special general meeting of the Board may be called upon less than the normal 

forty-eight hours' notice, in writing or by telephone, with such meeting being 

deemed to have been properly convened if a majority of trustees agree to waive 

the normal forty-eight hours' of written notice.

Page 657 of 698



1 -
 C

URRENT

 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 2 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

5. The following procedural matters will be implemented: 

 

 • The meetings will be conducted in two major sections: 

 

  The first will encompass the agenda, minutes and acceptance of presentations 

 from the public and employee groups; 

 

 The second will be for the consideration of Board Committee Reports and Special 

Reports to the Board. 

 

 • The meetings should be conducted in a timely manner and time guidelines and 

 limits adhered to with respect to: 

 

 *  general meetings of the Board of Education commence at 7:30 p.m. and 

continue until no later than 11:00 p.m., save as may be extended by majority 

consent 

 

 * Starting the meeting on time 

 

 * The Community Presentations period is limited to a maximum of six 

speakers, each speaking a maximum of five minutes; there can only be three 

speakers per issue (numbers and time may be extended at the discretion of 

the Chair) 

 

 * No public debate with presenters; information only will be received 

 

 * The Question Period is limited to 15 minutes 

 

6. Wherever possible, the public will be encouraged to attend a Committee meeting 

rather than a Board meeting in order to facilitate dialogue with the public before 

decisions are made.  Discussion and debate of issues takes place at two regularly 

scheduled Standing Committee meetings each month.  During the Standing 

Committee meetings, members of the public make presentations and discussions 

often ensue with committee members, stakeholder groups, and staff. 

 

 In addition to the opportunities to present at Standing Committees, employee 

partner groups including the Greater Victoria Teachers’ Association (GVTA), the 

Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE) Local 947 and Local 382), the 

Page 658 of 698



1 -
 C

URRENT

 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 3 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

Victoria Parent Advisory Councils (VCPAC), Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, 

Youth Representatives Committee, and the Victoria Principals and Vice-Principals 

Association (VPVPA), are able to provide comment on specific motions prior to 

them being voted on by the Board.  The Board Chair will ask stakeholder 

representatives whether they would like to provide comment on motions prior to 

the Board of Education considering the motion.  Each stakeholder representative 

will have up to two minutes to provide comment through the Chair.   

 

7. In the event that the Board shall fail to conclude the business of the agenda by the 

time of adjournment the Chair may designate not more than one additional 

meeting, to be held within one week on the day and date designated by the Chair. 

 

8. The agenda shall be prepared and circulated by the Chair of the Board. 

 

9. There shall be an agenda circulated to all trustees not less than three days prior to 

each regularly scheduled meeting of the Board in general session, and not less than 

forty-eight hours prior to a special meeting of the Board in general session. 

 

10. The agenda shall be approved by ordinary motion as the first item of business at 

each meeting. 

 

11. The Agenda shall contain the following: 

 

 Guidelines for the meeting format including outlining opportunities for public and 

stakeholder comments 

 

A. Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories; Approval of the Agenda; 
Approval of Previous Minutes and Business Arising from the Minutes  

 

Student Achievement Presentations; District Presentations; Community 

Presentations 

 

B. Correspondence 

 

C.  Chair’s Report; Trustee Reports (including Reports from Trustee 

Representatives with Other Public Bodies) 

  

Page 659 of 698



1 -
 C

URRENT

 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 4 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

 

D.  Board Committee Reports: 

 

 (1) Education Policy and Directions Motions 

 (2) Operations Policy and Planning Motions  

 

E.  District Leadership Team Reports 

 

F.  Question Period 

 
G. Public Disclosure of In-Camera Items 

 
H. New Business/Notice of Motions 

 
I.  Adjournment 

 

 The order of the Agenda shall be as above, unless varied at the meeting by 

majority vote. 

  

12. A copy of the Agenda shall be made available to the media, partner groups and 

the public (website) through the Secretary-Treasurer's office on the day after copies 

are delivered to trustees, and such Agenda shall have attached the Committee 

Reports. 

 

13. The Board Chair may reschedule any regularly-scheduled general meeting of the 

Board to a different time and date in order to meet the business requirements of 

the Board.  The Board may, by ordinary resolution, cancel a regular general 

meeting of the Board.  

 

14. In accordance with Section 67 of the School Act, the Board may allow Trustees to 

participate in or attend a meeting of the Board by telephone or other means of 

communication if all Trustees and other persons participating in or attending the 

meeting are able to communicate with each other.   Such attendance shall only be 

permitted where Trustee participation is prevented by extraordinary 

circumstances.  Trustees wishing to attend electronically must provide a minimum 

of 48 hours’ notice of such attendance. 

 

Page 660 of 698



1 -
 C

URRENT

 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 5 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

15. With the exception of poll votes pursuant to Bylaw 9011, the Board shall not 

conduct meetings electronically.  For the purposes of this bylaw, electronic 

communications that would constitute a meeting include communications shared 

among all trustees that materially advance a matter before the Board.  This Bylaw 

does not prohibit the electronic provision of information pertaining to a matter 

before the Board. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Greater Victoria School District 

Adopted: April 27, 1981 

Various Revisions 

Revised: November 25, 1991 

Revised: June 23, 1997 

Revised: January 16, 2006 

Revised January 19, 2009 (corrected) 

Revised: November 17, 2014 

Revised: December 14, 2015 

Revised: June 20, 2016 

Revised: April 24, 2017 

Revised: April 23, 2018 
 

Page 661 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 1 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

BYLAW 9360
 

 

GENERAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

 

1. The Board of Education of School District 61 will regularly meet on the fourth 

Monday of each month except where the fourth Monday is a statutory holiday, in 

which case the meeting will take place on the next working day, except for the 

months of July and August, when no meeting will be held and for the month of 

December, when the meeting will be on the second Monday of the month. 

 

2. In addition to the regularly scheduled meetings of the Board the newly elected 

Board will meet for the first time within 30 days after the official results of the 

election of trustees will have been declared, for the purpose of receiving the 

results, the swearing in of Trustees, and the selection of the Chair and Vice-Chair 

of the Board.  This inaugural meeting of the Board will be called and chaired by 

the Secretary-Treasurer of the School District until the Chair is elected, at which 

time the elected Chair will preside. 

 

3.  Each year thereafter during the term of office, the election of Chair, Vice-Chair, 

and Board representatives will take place at the November Board meeting. At the 

meeting following, the Chair will appoint, after first canvassing Trustees for 

interest, Trustees to external and internal committees, as well as family of schools, 

municipal and First Nation liaison roles. 

 

4. The Chair, the Secretary-Treasurer or any three trustees, may call a special or 

extra-ordinary meeting of the Board, in addition to the regularly scheduled general 

meetings of the Board. 

 

5. A special meeting will be called upon less than the normal forty-eight hours' 

notice, in writing or by telephone, with such meeting being deemed to have been 

properly convened if a majority of trustees agree to waive the normal forty-eight 

hours' of written notice. 

 

6. The following procedural matters will be implemented: 

 

 •  Meetings will be conducted in two major sections: 

Page 662 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 2 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

 

  The first will encompass the agenda, minutes, correspondence, and acceptance of 

presentations  from the public and employee groups; 

 

 The second will be for the consideration of Board Committee Reports and Special 

Reports to the Board. 

 

  • The meetings should be conducted in a timely manner and time guidelines   

and limits adhered to with respect to: 

 

 *  general meetings of the Board of Education commence at 7:30 p.m. and 

continue until no later than 10:30 p.m., save as may be extended by majority 

consent 

 

 * Starting the meeting on time 

 

 * The Community Presentations period is limited to a maximum of six 

speakers, each speaking a maximum of five minutes; there can only be three 

speakers per issue (numbers and time may be extended at the discretion of 

the Chair)  

  

*    Individuals or delegations wishing to make a presentation will be advised of 

their placement on an upcoming agenda on the Wednesday before the 

Regular meeting. Presentations on behalf of groups will be presentation by 

the spokesperson(s) of that group, who will be identified on the agenda. 

 

 * There will be no public debate with presenters; information only will be 

received 

 

 * The Question Period is limited to 15 minutes 

 

7. The public will be encouraged to attend the Education Policy and Directions, or 

the Operations Policy and Planning Standing Committee meetings, in order to 

rather than a Board meeting, to facilitate dialogue with the public before decisions 

are made.  

 

 In addition to the opportunities to participate at Standing Committees, the Board 

Chair will ask partner groups including the Greater Victoria Teachers’ Association 

Page 663 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 3 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

(GVTA), the Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE Locals 947 and 382), the 

Victoria Confederation of Parent Advisory Councils (VCPAC), Esquimalt and 

Songhees Nations, Student Representatives, and the Victoria Principals and Vice-

Principals Association (VPVPA), whether they would like to provide comment on 

motions prior to them being debated by the Board. Each stakeholder 

representative will have up to two minutes to provide comment through the Chair. 

 

8. In the event that the Board may fail to conclude the business of the agenda by the 

time of adjournment the Chair may ask the board to prioritize the remaining 

agenda items. Agenda items not concluded at the meeting, will be placed on the 

next month’s agenda, and given priority to occur before new business. 

 

9. All agendas will be prepared by the Chair of the Board, and circulated by the 

Chair or designate. Proposed agenda items will be provided to the Secretary-

Treasurer no later than the Tuesday before the meeting. 

 

10. The agenda will be approved by ordinary motion as the first item of business at 

each meeting. 

 

11. The Agenda will contain the following: 

 

 Guidelines for the meeting format including outlining opportunities for public and 

stakeholder comments 

 

A. Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories; Approval of the Agenda; 
Approval of Previous Minutes and Business Arising from the Minutes and 
Presentations of which first priority will be given to schools, and then to the 
public and community. 
 

B. Opportunity for Comments from the Public (15 minutes) 

 

C.  Correspondence 

 

D.  Chair’s Report; Trustee Reports  

 

E.  Board Committee Reports: 

 

 (1) Education Policy and Directions Motions 

Page 664 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 4 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

 (2) Operations Policy and Planning Motions  

 

F.  Staff Reports 

 

G.  Question Period 

 
H. Public Disclosure of In-Camera Items 

 
I.   New Business/Notice of Motions 

 
J.  Adjournment 

 

 The order of the Agenda will be as above, unless varied at the meeting by majority 

vote. 

  

12. An electronic copy of the General Meeting Agenda will be made available to the 

media, partner groups and the public (website) through the Secretary-Treasurer's 

three days before the meeting. 

 

13. The Board Chair may reschedule any regularly scheduled general meeting of the 

Board to a different time and date in order to meet the business requirements of 

the Board.  The Board may, by ordinary resolution, cancel a regular general 

meeting of the Board.  

 

14. In accordance with Section 67 of the School Act, the Chair may allow Trustees to 

participate in or attend a meeting of the Board by telephone or other means of 

communication if all Trustees and other persons participating in or attending the 

meeting are able to communicate with each other.   Such attendance shall only be 

permitted where Trustee participation is prevented by extraordinary 

circumstances and can be accommodated by staff.  
 

15. With the exception of poll votes pursuant to Bylaw 9011, and electronic meetings 

called by the Chair, the Board will not conduct meetings electronically.  For the 

purposes of this bylaw, electronic communications that would constitute a meeting 

include communications shared among all trustees that materially advance or 

debate a matter before the Board.  This Bylaw does not prohibit the electronic 

provision of information pertaining to a matter before the Board. 

  

Page 665 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 5 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

 

 

Greater Victoria School District 

Adopted: April 27, 1981 

Various Revisions 

Revised: November 25, 1991 

Revised: June 23, 1997 

Revised: January 16, 2006 

Revised January 19, 2009 (corrected) 

Revised: November 17, 2014 

Revised: December 14, 2015 

Revised: June 20, 2016 

Revised: April 24, 2017 

Revised: April 23, 2018 

Revised: February 2021 

 

Page 666 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 1 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

BYLAW 9360
 

 

GENERAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

 

1. The Board of Education of School District 61 will regularly meet on the fourth 

Monday of each month except where the fourth Monday is a statutory holiday, in 

which case the meeting will take place on the next working day, except for the 

months of July and August, when no meeting will be held and for the month of 

December, when the meeting will be on the second Monday of the month. 

 

2. In addition to the regularly scheduled meetings of the Board the newly elected 

Board will meet for the first time within 30 days after the official results of the 

election of trustees will have been declared, for the purpose of receiving the 

results, the swearing in of Trustees, and the selection of the Chair and Vice-Chair 

of the Board.  This inaugural meeting of the Board will be called and chaired by 

the Secretary-Treasurer of the School District until the Chair is elected, at which 

time the elected Chair will preside. 

 

3.  Each year thereafter during the term of office, the election of Chair, Vice-Chair, 

and Board representatives will take place at the November Board meeting. At the 

meeting following, the Chair will appoint, after first canvassing Trustees for 

interest, Trustees to external and internal committees, as well as family of schools, 

municipal and First Nation liaison roles. 

 

4. The Chair, the Secretary-Treasurer or any three trustees, may call a special meeting 

of the Board, in addition to the regularly scheduled general meetings of the Board. 

 

5. A special meeting will be called upon less than the normal forty-eight hours' 

notice, in writing or by telephone, with such meeting being deemed to have been 

properly convened if a majority of trustees agree to waive the normal forty-eight 

hours' of written notice. 

 

6. The following procedural matters will be implemented: 

 

 •  Meetings will be conducted in two major sections: 

 

Page 667 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 2 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

  The first will encompass the agenda, minutes, correspondence, and acceptance of 

presentations  from the public and employee groups; 

 

 The second will be for the consideration of Board Committee Reports and Special 

Reports to the Board. 

 

  • The meetings should be conducted in a timely manner and time guidelines   

and limits adhered to with respect to: 

 

 *  general meetings of the Board of Education commence at 7:30 p.m. and 

continue until no later than 10:30 p.m., save as may be extended by majority 

consent 

 

 * Starting the meeting on time 

 

 * The Community Presentations period is limited to a maximum of six 

speakers, each speaking a maximum of five minutes; there can only be three 

speakers per issue (numbers and time may be extended at the discretion of 

the Chair)  

  

*    Individuals or delegations wishing to make a presentation will be advised of 

their placement on an upcoming agenda on the Wednesday before the 

Regular meeting. Presentations on behalf of groups will be presentation by 

the spokesperson(s) of that group, who will be identified on the agenda. 

 

 * There will be no public debate with presenters; information only will be 

received 

 

 * The Question Period is limited to 15 minutes 

 

7. The public will be encouraged to attend the Education Policy and Directions, or 

the Operations Policy and Planning Standing Committee meetings, rather than a 

Board meeting, to facilitate dialogue with the public before decisions are made.  

 

 In addition to the opportunities to participate at Standing Committees, the Board 

Chair will ask partner groups including the Greater Victoria Teachers’ Association 

(GVTA), the Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE Locals 947 and 382), the 

Victoria Confederation of Parent Advisory Councils (VCPAC), Esquimalt and 

Page 668 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 3 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

Songhees Nations, Student Representatives, and the Victoria Principals and Vice-

Principals Association (VPVPA), whether they would like to provide comment on 

motions prior to them being debated by the Board. Each stakeholder 

representative will have up to two minutes to provide comment through the Chair. 

 

8. In the event that the Board may fail to conclude the business of the agenda by the 

time of adjournment the Chair may ask the board to prioritize the remaining 

agenda items. Agenda items not concluded at the meeting, will be placed on the 

next month’s agenda, and given priority to occur before new business. 

 

9. All agendas will be prepared by the Chair of the Board, and circulated by the 

Chair or designate. Proposed agenda items will be provided to the Secretary-

Treasurer no later than the Tuesday before the meeting. 

 

10. The agenda will be approved by ordinary motion as the first item of business at 

each meeting. 

 

11. The Agenda will contain the following: 

 

 Guidelines for the meeting format including outlining opportunities for public and 

stakeholder comments 

 

A. Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories; Approval of the Agenda; 
Approval of Previous Minutes and Business Arising from the Minutes and 
Presentations of which first priority will be given to schools, and then to the 
public and community. 
 

B. Opportunity for Comments from the Public (15 minutes) 

 

C.  Correspondence 

 

D.  Chair’s Report; Trustee Reports  

 

E.  Board Committee Reports: 

 

 (1) Education Policy and Directions Motions 

 (2) Operations Policy and Planning Motions  

 

Page 669 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 4 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

F.  Staff Reports 

 

G.  Question Period 

 
H. Public Disclosure of In-Camera Items 

 
I.   New Business/Notice of Motions 

 
J.  Adjournment 

 

 The order of the Agenda will be as above, unless varied at the meeting by majority 

vote. 

  

12. An electronic copy of the General Meeting Agenda will be made available to the 

media, partner groups and the public (website) through the Secretary-Treasurer's 

three days before the meeting. 

 

13. The Board Chair may reschedule any regularly scheduled general meeting of the 

Board to a different time and date in order to meet the business requirements of 

the Board.  The Board may, by ordinary resolution, cancel a regular general 

meeting of the Board.  

 

14. In accordance with Section 67 of the School Act, the Chair may allow Trustees to 

participate in or attend a meeting of the Board by telephone or other means of 

communication if all Trustees and other persons participating in or attending the 

meeting are able to communicate with each other.   Such attendance shall only be 

permitted where Trustee participation is prevented by extraordinary 

circumstances and can be accommodated by staff.  
 

15. With the exception of poll votes pursuant to Bylaw 9011, and electronic meetings 

called by the Chair, the Board will not conduct meetings electronically.  For the 

purposes of this bylaw, electronic communications that would constitute a meeting 

include communications shared among all trustees that materially advance or 

debate a matter before the Board.  This Bylaw does not prohibit the electronic 

provision of information pertaining to a matter before the Board. 

  

 

 

Page 670 of 698



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Bylaw 9360  Page 5 of 5 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

Greater Victoria School District 

Adopted: April 27, 1981 

Various Revisions 

Revised: November 25, 1991 

Revised: June 23, 1997 

Revised: January 16, 2006 

Revised January 19, 2009 (corrected) 

Revised: November 17, 2014 

Revised: December 14, 2015 

Revised: June 20, 2016 

Revised: April 24, 2017 

Revised: April 23, 2018 

Revised: February 2021 

 

Page 671 of 698



 
 

 
 

 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Shelley Green 

RE:  Superintendent’s Report 

DATE:  April 26, 2021 

 

There are a number of items that the Superintendent wishes to bring to the attention of the 
Board of Education. 
 
Events and Meetings 
The Superintendent has attended a number of events and met with a number of individuals 
since the last Board meeting.  These have included: 
 
 District Committees 

o Educational Staffing Committee 
 
 Meetings and Events 

o Professional Conversations 
 
 Meetings 

o Arbutus  
o Generative Dialogue/Coaching 
o Joint Committee (GVTA) 
o Ministry of Education Updates 
o Partner Groups – COVID Update 
o Professional Relations Committee (GVTA) 
o Principal Leader Cohort  
o Principals and Vice-Principals 
o Representative Advisory Council of Students  
o Tri-District Superintendents 
o Trustee Professional Working Session  
o VPVPA 
o Victoria High Staff Meeting 
o Victoria West Community Association 

 
Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
accept the Superintendent’s Report, as presented.   

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 

 

 Shelley Green – Superintendent of Schools 

Page 672 of 698



 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4162  Fax (250) 475-4112 Shelley Green –Superintendent 

 

Office of the 
Superintendent 

 
TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools 

DATE:  April 26, 2021    

RE:  Budget Thoughtexchange Summary Report   

 

Background: 

As part of the Board approved 2021-2022 Budget Consultation Process, the District hosted an online Thoughtexchange 
to gather input from students, families, staff and educational partners on the upcoming budget. Each year, the School 
District engages with its learning community on the topic of student success and resource allocation. This year, the 
Board approved the following question to invite feedback on the annual budget: 

“The student experience is at the heart of all we do in SD61. What are the most important changes you would make to 
your school (child’s/students’/own) environment to improve the student experience?” 

The online exchange was open for two weeks and an invitation to participate was advertised broadly: 

• Letters to school communities and partners  
• District web and social media content 
• Media coverage (paper, online and TV) 

More than 6,000 members of the community participated in the exchange, and over 7,000 thoughts were shared.  

Please see attached a Thoughtexchange Summary Report. An in-depth online interactive version is also available on 
the District’s website: https://my.thoughtexchange.com/report/f1e98cb05bfb8e678bad0d629ac9d09a 

 

 

 

Page 673 of 698

https://my.thoughtexchange.com/report/f1e98cb05bfb8e678bad0d629ac9d09a


 

 
Page 674 of 698



 

 

 

Page 675 of 698



Exchange Summary
School District No. 61 Greater Victoria
March 12, 2021

The student experience is at the heart of all we 
do in SD61. What are the most important 
changes you would make to your school 
(child's/students'/own) environment to improve 
the student experience?

Page 676 of 698



PARTICIPATION
Breakdown of Participation

Page 677 of 698



PARTICIPATION
Breakdown of Participation

Page 678 of 698



WORDCLOUD
Top Rated

Words are sized based on the star rating of the thoughts they appear in.Page 679 of 698



THOUGHTS
Key Thoughts 

Page 680 of 698



BUDGET 2021-2022
Top 15 Themes

Displays information based on the average star ratings of the total thoughts 
shared within each theme.

Page 681 of 698



BUDGET 2021-2022
Top 15 Emerging Themes

Top 15 Themes in Online Exchange
• Music, Performing Arts and Exploratories
• Funding/Lobby Government
• Mental Health 
• Administration
• Class Sizes
• Educational Assistants
• Equity/Equality
• First Nations
• Inclusion
• Learning
• Literacy 
• Outdoor Learning
• Sports – Physical Activity
• Climate
• COVID-19 

There were more than 4900+ thoughts 
submitted about music, performing arts and 

exploratories. 

Page 682 of 698



THOUGHTS – #1 Theme
Music, Performing Arts & Exploratories

Page 683 of 698



THOUGHTS - #2 Theme
Funding / Lobby Government

Page 684 of 698



THOUGHTS - #3 Theme
Mental Health

Page 685 of 698



THOUGHTS 
What We Heard: Other Themes 

Administration
• Cut from administration rather than schools
• “Make cuts at the top”

Class size
• Smaller class sizes and more assistance in the classrooms
• Give teachers more time to work with individual students
• Small class sizes are important to student learning
• Maintain class sizes and cleaning practices; beneficial during COVID-19

Climate/Sustainability
• Continue to teach students about environmental stewardship
• School emission from heating, cooling and electricity need modernization for a 

green future
• Follow through with declared climate emergency
• More bike racks

Page 686 of 698



THOUGHTS 
What We Heard: Other Themes 

COVID-19
• Maintain or increase custodial time 
• Foster parental involvement post COVID-19
• More dedicated outdoor learning spaces

Educational Assistants
• Increase EA support
• EA’s play a valuable role in supporting healthy schools
• “Don’t take away EAs, gifted programs, or YFCs” 

Equity/Equality
• School experience should be equal access
• Do not take supports away from vulnerable learners
• Extra curriculars should be offered through schools; many cannot afford all the 

opportunities for their children
• Keep Human Rights at the forefront of budgeting

Page 687 of 698



THOUGHTS 
What We Heard: Other Themes 

First Nations
• Continue partnerships with local First Nation communities
• Prioritize Indigenous Ways of Learning/Knowing
• More courses on Indigenous History 
• Invite Elders into schools to work with youth

Inclusion/Diversity
• More supports required for students with designations and neuro-diverse learners
• More supports required for mental health 
• Encourage LGBTQIA2S+ diversity and anti-racist training in schools
• Prioritize anti-racist policies
• Include voices from all people in the community, “focus on impacts for all students, 

not just the wealthy.”

Page 688 of 698



THOUGHTS 
What We Heard: Other Themes 

Learning
• Cutting teaching jobs will impact student learning
• Offer flexible or various learning experiences to engage students at different stages
• Enhance exploratories and provide more hands-on learning experiences
• Include more real life lessons, e.g., budgeting, taxes, mortgages
• More anti-racism education required
• Keep curriculum competitive with global standards

Literacy
• “No cuts to reading recovery”
• More investment in libraries and literacy
• Update technology in libraries to build proper learning commons
• Continue focus on literacy in science and math 

Page 689 of 698



THOUGHTS 
What We Heard: Other Themes 

Outdoor Learning
• Provide more time for students to learn outdoors
• Increase nature play and cultural experiences
• Desire for more outdoor learning spaces/classrooms

Sports/Physical Activity 
• Many references of how music is a “team sport”
• Some felt too many resources were focused on sports academies
• Physical education is important year round; course should be offered for a full year
• Invest in outdoor sport equipment, e.g., basketball courts, climbing boulders
• Phys. Ed introduces healthy habits for students

Page 690 of 698



WRAP UP
Conclusion

For the full summary report, please visit:
https://my.thoughtexchange.com/report/f1e98cb05bfb8e678bad0d629
ac9d09a

*Full summary report includes all contributions/comments.

Page 691 of 698

https://my.thoughtexchange.com/report/f1e98cb05bfb8e678bad0d629ac9d09a


 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Phone (250) 475-4162   Fax (250) 475-4112 Shelley Green - Superintendent 

 

Office of the 

Superintendent 

TO: The Board of Education 
 
FROM: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools 
 
RE: Superintendent’s Report 
     
DATE: April 26, 2021 
 

 
During this portion of the Board Meeting, Trustees will have the opportunity to raise questions.  Where possible, 

an immediate response will be provided.  In the event that research is necessary before a response is provided, 

the matter will be postponed until a researched response can be provided. 

 

Page 692 of 698



 

 

 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM: Kim Morris 

RE:  Monthly Report 

DATE:  April 26, 2021 

The purpose of this memo is to update the Board on some of the activities of the Secretary- 
Treasurer’s office since March’s report. 
 
 Facilities and Minor Capital Staff Weekly Meetings with Superintendent  
 Administrators Meeting 
 Deputy Minister Meetings 
 Human Resources Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 Victoria High School Seismic Project Bi-Weekly Meetings  
 CSF Co-Location at Braefoot Project Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 Board and Committee meetings  
 Weekly Budget Meetings with Finance Team 
 District Allocation Working Group Meetings 
 BCASBO Leadership Cohort 
 Student Representative Meeting 
 Various Department and Partner budget meetings 
 Zero Emission School Bus Information Meeting 
 BCSTA AGM 
 Media re Budget 
 VISTA Branch Meeting 
 Funding Equity Committee Meeting 
 Board Working Sessions 1 and 2 re Budget 
 Partner meeting Caledonia 
 Future Partnership Project Meeting District of Saanich 
 PRC Committee Meeting 

 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 Kim Morris  -  Secretary Treasurer 

Office of the 
Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 693 of 698



 

The Board of Education 
of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
In-Camera Board Meeting, March 29, 2021 

 
 

 

 

SECTION 72 REPORT 
 
 
Present: 
Trustees Jordan Watters, Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie 
Hentze, Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter (arrived at 6:05 p.m.), and Ann Whiteaker 
 
Sanctioned: 
Trustee Diane McNally  
 
Guest: 
Andrew Kadler, Koffman, Kalef, LLP 
 
Administration: 
Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy 
Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate Superintendent, Colin Robert, Associate 
Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-Treasurer, Chuck Morris, Director of Facilities 
Services, Jim Soles, Associate Director, Facilities Services, Lisa McPhail, Communications and 
Community Engagement Manager and Vicki Hanley, Recorder  
 
The Board of Education discussed the following matters: 
 

 Property 

 Governance 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 694 of 698



 

The Board of Education 
of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

Special In-Camera Board Meeting, April 6, 2021 

 
 

 

 

SECTION 72 REPORT 
 
 
Present: 
Trustees Jordan Watters, Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie 
Hentze, Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter and Ann Whiteaker 
 
Sanctioned: 
Trustee Diane McNally 
 
Administration: 
Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, and Kim Morris, Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, 
Deputy Superintendent, Colin Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate, 
Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-Treasurer, Chuck Morris, Director, Facilities 
Services, Jim Soles, Associate Director, Facilities Services and Vicki Hanley, Recorder 
 
The Board of Education discussed the following matters: 
 

 Land 

 Legal 

 Governance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 695 of 698



 

The Board of Education 
of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

Special In-Camera Board Meeting, April 19, 2021 

 
 
 

SECTION 72 REPORT 
 
 
Present: 
Trustees Jordan Watters, Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole Duncan (via conference phone), 
Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze, Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter (via conference phone) and Ann Whiteaker 
 
Sanctioned: 
Trustee Diane McNally 
 
Administration: 
Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy 
Superintendent, Colin Roberts, Associate Superintendent, and Harold Caldwell, Associate, 
Superintendent 
 
The Board of Education discussed the following matter: 
 

 Privacy 

 Legal 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 696 of 698



 

 

 

                                  

 

 TO: Board 

FROM: Trustee Rob Paynter 

Re: FY 2021/22 Revised budget process 

DATE: 21 April 2021 

 

Background:  
 
The FY 21/22 District budget has come as a shock to staff, parents, and students.  While it was 
understood by members of the Board that the district was dealing with reduced revenue from 
facility rentals, and international student rates, when the decision was made in 2020 to pass a 
rollover budget, it is nevertheless a surprise to learn that the district has apparently not 
pursued any sort of spending restraint over the course of the past year and is now in a position 
where significant cuts are proposed. 
 
The current process has presented a single approach for moving forward with achieving a 
balanced budget with oblique references to increased expenditures in terms of staffing levels 
and contractual obligations1. The proposed cuts to services are highly problematic and will 
result in diminished supports to students in terms of enjoyment and development of life-long 
skills, support for our most vulnerable learners and mental health support. With respect to 
operating in our schools, additional workloads are being shifted to administrators ad essential 
collaboration and learning opportunities for teachers are being lost. More challenging, these 
reductions have been presented in a manner that does not permit examination of alternative 
approaches or even to understand the balances associated with different funding sources. 
Finally, questions have been raised regarding basic information, for example the number of 
FTEs supported by the district for middle school music programming appears to include 
individual school allocations meaning that both the actual costs of delivering this programming 
ad the potential savings from cuts have been overstated. 
 
 

                                                           
1 https://www.sd61.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/sites/91/2021/04/Budget-2021-2022-Special-Open-Board-SEcond-
Reading-on-the-Floor-FINAL-REVISED-2021-04-13-003.pdf page 4 

Greater Victoria 

School District 
 

Office of 

Trustee Paynter 

Page 697 of 698

https://www.sd61.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/sites/91/2021/04/Budget-2021-2022-Special-Open-Board-SEcond-Reading-on-the-Floor-FINAL-REVISED-2021-04-13-003.pdf
https://www.sd61.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/sites/91/2021/04/Budget-2021-2022-Special-Open-Board-SEcond-Reading-on-the-Floor-FINAL-REVISED-2021-04-13-003.pdf


Rationale:  
 
To date, the budget process has been demonstrated to be closed off and uncollaborative.  
Opportunities for trustees and educational partners to ask questions in public have been 
extremely limited and closed door “working sessions” appear to be intended to only reflect the 
single proposal submitted by District Administration. There appears to be no meaningful 
opportunity to deliberate alternatives within the budget planning process despite its extension 
to May 17 
 
Alignment to the Strategic Plan: This proposal aligns with: 
Goal 1 
Create an inclusive and culturally responsive learning environment that will support and 
improve all learners’ personal and academic success 
Goal 3  
Create an inclusive and culturally responsive learning environment that will support all learners’ 
physical and mental well-being. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Education of Greater Victoria (School District 61) direct the Superintendent 
immediately schedule public meetings of the Board to enable the board and district 
administration to collaboratively develop an annual budget based on the 2020/21 budget 
allocations through the review of all district (by department) and school level allocations at to 
include both proposed operating and special purpose funds.  

 District department leads and school principals will be expected to submit reports in 
advance to the Board on resource allocations and expenditures for the past 3 years 
and rationales for any proposed change in resourcing to be considered in the FY 21/22 
budget.  

 Meeting topics will be posted in advance to allow for public presentations specific to 
the agenda topic. 

 Meetings schedules will be coordinated to enable the review to be completed, budget 
proposal finalized and Board bylaw to be passed by May 17, 2021. 

Page 698 of 698


	Agenda
	A.3.a Approval of the March 29, 2021 Regular Board Minutes
	A.3.b Approval of the April 13, 2021 Special Board Minutes
	B.1 March 31, 2021, BCSTA to Minister of Education, School Life Cycle Funding
	B.2 April 1, 2021, SD33 to Minister of Education and Minister of Public Safety, Educational Services in Correctional Facilities
	B.3 Budget Correspondence re Proposed 2021-2022 Budget
	C.1.a Chair's Report
	C.1.b Annual Workplan: May
	C.2.a Trustee Paynter
	D.1.a Draft minutes from the April 6, 2021 meeting - Information only
	D.2.a Draft minutes from the April 12, 2021 meeting - Information only
	D.2.b.a Draft Child Care Policy 1330
	D.2.b.b George Jay Naming Committee - Draft Terms of Reference
	D.3 Revised Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board 
	D.3 Revised Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board 
	D.3 Revised Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board 
	E.1.a Monthly Report
	E.1.c Communications Update 
	E.1.c Communications Update 
	E.1.d Trustee Questions
	E.2.a Monthly Report
	G.1 Record of In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - March 29, 2020
	G.2 Record of Special In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - April 6, 2021
	G.3 Record of Special In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - April 19, 2021
	H.1.a Trustee Paynter - FY 2021-/22 Budget Process

